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CLERK’S OFPC~F
BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD

JUL 02 2004
PEOPLE OF THE STATE’ OF ILLINOIS, ) -

ex rel. LISA ‘MADIGAN., Attorney ) PoHu~onControl Board
General of the State of Illinois

Complainant, .

‘V ) No. PCB 03-51

DRAW DRAPE CLEANERS, INC., an’
Illinois corporation, AMERICAN
DRAPERY CLEANERS &‘ FLA.MEPROOFERS,
INC., an Illinois corporation, and
RICHARD ZELL, an Illinois resident;)

Respondents. .

COMPLAINANT’S SECONDMOTION FOR PARTIAL SUMMARYJUDGMENT

Plaintiff, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, exrel. LISA

MADIGAN, Attorney ,General of the State of Illinois, and pursuant

to Section 101.516 of the Illinois Pollution Control Board

procedural Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 101.516, hereby moves

for the entry of an order granting partial summary judgment in

favor of the Complainant and against Respondents RICHARD ZELL, an

Illinois resident; and AMERICANDRAPERYCLEANERS & FLAMEPROOFERS,

an Illinois corporation.

INTRODUCTION

An eight-Oount complaint was filed in this matter on October

15, 2002 against Respondent Draw Drape Cleaners,, Inc. (“Draw

Drape”). An Amended Complaint, substantially similar to the

original complaint, was’ filed against Draw Drape and Respondents

Richard Zell (“Zell”) and American Drapery Cleaners &
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Flameproof ers, Inc. (“ADC&FI”) on Decethber 30, 2003. A copy of

the Amended Complaint is attached hereto and incorporated herein

as Exhibit.1. The Amended Complaint invàlves a petroleum solvent,

dry cleaning facility operated by Respondents’ located at 2235-

2239’ West Roscoe Street, Chicago, Cook County, Illinois.

On June 27, 2003, Complainant filed its first Motion for

Partial Summary Judgment against Respondent Draw Drape (“First

Motion”). , See Exhibit 2. On August 21, 2003 the Board granted

Complainant’s First Motion. See Exhibit 3.’ The Board found in

Complainant’s favor on each of the four counts f or which

Complainant sought summary judgment: C~unt’ IV, construction of an

emissions source without a permit; Count V, operation of an

emissions source without a ‘permit; Count VII, installation of a

non-solvent recovery dryer and lack of a cartridge filter; and

Count VIII.. failure tO perform an initial flow rate test on Dryer

#2. ‘ ‘ ‘

Complainant served” Respondent Draw Drape with two sets of

written discovery which Draw Drape answered. Portions of the

answers to Complainant’s discovery requests are attach,ed herein.

Today, Complainant is filing its Second Motion for Partial

Summary Judgment (“Second Motion”) against Respondents Zell and

.ADC&FI with respect to the same counts for which it was awarded

summary judgrr~ent in the First Motion.’
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SUMMARY JUDGMENT STANDARD

Summary judgment is appropriate when the pleadings,

depositions, admissions on file, and affidavits disclose there is

no genuine issue, as to’ any material fact and the moving party is

entitled to’ judgment as a matter of law. Dowd & Dowd, Ltd. v.

Gleason, 181 Ill.2d 460, 483, 693 N.E.2d 358, 370 (1998) . ‘ Use of

summary judgment procedure is to be encouraged as an aid in

expeditious disposition of lawsuits; however, it is drastic means

of disposing of litigation and should be allow~d only when the

,right of the moving party is clear and free of doubt. Gilbert v.

Sycamore Municipal Hospital, 156 I1l.2d 511, 518, 622 N.E.2d 788,

‘792 (1993). Although summary judgment is drastic, the instant

case is tailor made for this type of disposition and resolution.

Furthermore, using summary judgment as a means of finding

Respondents Zell and ADC&FI liable for violations of the laws and

regulations as alleged in Counts IV, V, VII, and VIII will limit

the future proOeedings by the Complainant against those

Respondents and will dispose of a portion of the lawsuit.

Complainant’~ right to summary judgment on Counts IV, V, VII, and

VIII with respect to’ Respondents Zell and ADC&FI is clear and

free of doubt. This is an appropriate use of summary judgment.

ADMITTED FACTS AND ARGUMENT - DRAWDRAPE

Complainant incorporates the “Admitted Facts and Background

Law” section and the arguments sections of its First Motion into
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this Second Motion as though fully set forth herein. See Exhibit

2, pp. 4-11. ‘

LIABILITY OF ADC&FI AND ZELL

Complainant alleges that both Respondents Zell and ADC&FI

are equally as liable as Draw Drape for the violations of the

Environmental Protection Act (“Act”) and Board regulations by

virtue of their relationship’to Dra~i Drape. Thus, any finding of

summaryjudgment against Draw Drape should also apply to Zell and

ADC&FI. ‘ ‘

Liability of Zell

In Illinois environmental law, corporate officers can be

personally liable ‘for their company’s environmental violations.

The standard for corporate officer liability in environmental

‘enforcement ‘actions is set forth in People v. C.J.R. Processing,

Inc., et al., 269 Ill. App.’ 3d 1013, 647 N.E.2d 1035 (3d Dist..

1995). As in this case, the People sued both the company and a

corporate officer for the vJolations of the Act and regulations.

Id. at 1014, 647 N.E.2d at 1036. The C.J.R. Court held that a

corporate officer constitutes a ‘~person” under Section 3.26 (now

3.315) o,f the Act. .~L A corpOrate officer can be held

personally liable for his company’s environmental violations if

he was personally involved in or actively participated in a

violation of the Act, or if he had the ability or authority to

control the acts or omissions that gave riseto the violation.
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Id. at 1018, 647 N.E.2d at 1038.’ The C.J.R. Court went on to

say that’ the General Assembly intended for the Act to be’

liberally construed. ~. at 1037. Any other “. .

interpretation of section 3.26 (now 3.315) would not serve the

Act’s express purpose of imposing responsibility upon those who

cause harm to the environment.” j~c~ Imposition of liability on

only the corporation and not upon those responsible, individuals

would prevent enforcement of the Act from achieving its

objective. .

Respondents identified Zell as the Vice President of Draw

Drape. Respondents also identified Zell as ‘one of only two,

people having knowledge of the operations at the dry cleaning

facility and having knowledge of the VOMemissions at the

facility. See Exhibit 4, Answer to Interrogatory, 2. Respondents

admit that Zell operates and manages both Draw ‘Drape and ADC&FI.

Zell is/was the only person responsible for day-to-day operations

The C.J.R. Court relied upon the Eighth Circuit’s decision

in United States v. Northeastern Phar. And Chem. Co., Inc., et
al., 810 F.2d 726 (8th Cir. 1986) . In Northeastern
Pharmaceutical, the federal government sought to have a’
corporation’s president and vice-president held personally liable
for their company’s improper hazardous waste’disposal. In holding
these corporate officers personally liable, the Eighth Circuit
noted, that while the president of the corporation was not
involved in the actual day-to-day decisions to transport and
dispose of the hazardous waste, he “was the individual in charge
of and directly responsible for all of [his company’s]
operations, including those at the [subject] plant, and he had
the ultimate authority to control the disposal of [his company’ s]
hazardous substances.” 810 F.2d at 745 (underline added) . ‘
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of th dry cleaning business. See ‘Exhibit 5, Answer to

Interrogatories 1 and 3. Furthermore, Zell “is’the only person~

who had’dealings with or conferred with orcorresponded,or met

with government regulators . . .‘, in all matters related to the

Complaint . . .“, See’Exhibit 5, Answer to Interrogatory 2.

Given that Zell ha,d complete and total control over all

aspects of” the day—to-operations at Draw Drape, Zell also had

complete and total control over acts and/or omissions giving rise

to the i)iolations as alleged 1±1.the Amended Complaint. Given his

complete ,control, of Draw Drape and hi’s knowledge of the VOM

issue, Zell was also personally involved in and actively

partiqipated in acts Or omissions which resulted in violations of

the Act, violations of the Board’s regulations, and violations of

the C.F.’R. Under the holding in C.J.R., Zell’is just as liable

for the violatiOns a,s alleged’ in the Amended Complaint as is Draw

Drape. ‘ ‘ , ‘

There are no disputed facts regarding Zeli’s control over

Draw Drape, and the legal authority for holding Zell liable as

spelled, out in C.J.R. is clear. Given that the Board has ruled

in Complainant’s favor on its First,Motion with respect to Draw

Drape, it should’also rule ‘in favor of Complainant on its Second

Motion with respect to Zell. , ‘

LIability, of ADC&FI

Complainant claims that ADC&FI is liable for the same
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violations in the Amended Complaint against Draw Drape given

that, but for the name, the two corporations are essentially the

same,,entity. “

In Draw Dr’ape’s First Response to Complainant’s First Set of

Interrogatories,, Complainant asked Draw Drape to describe its

relationship to ADC&FI. Although Draw Drape applied for and

received the Federally Enforceable State Operating Permit

(FESOP), ADC&FI is engaged in the same dry cleaning business as

Draw Drape. Draw Drape and ADC&FI are owned by’the same parties

and use the same facilities. See Exhibit 4, Answer to

Interrogatory 8. But for the identity of the ‘customers’ served,

both companies constr,ucted and operated the same non-permitted.

emissions eource, used the same non-solvent recovery dryer,

without a cartridge filter, and used Dryer #2 without performing

an initial flow rate test. Furthermore, ‘Draw Drape and ADC&FI

are wholly owned (50% each) by the same two parties - Zell and

Steven Press. See Exhibit 4, Answer to Interrogatories 8 and 10;

Exhibit 5, Answer to Interrogatory 4.

The facts a~e clear and undisputed regarding the culpability

of ADC&FI for the alleged violations. The law is clear as well.

Pursuant to C.J.R. and given the General Assembly’s intent that

the Act be liberally construed, the corporate veil between Draw

Drape and ADC&FI should be pierced just as the corporate veil

between Draw Drape and Zell should be pierced. The Board has
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ruled in Complainant’s ,favor On its First Motion with respect to

‘Draw.Drape’s liability, and it should also rule in favor of

Complainant on its Second Motion with respect to ADC&FI’s

liability. ‘ “ ‘ , ‘

CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Complainant

respectfully requests the Board to:

1. Enteran order granting summary judgment.for

Complainant and against Respondent.s Zell and ADC&FI for Counts

IV, ‘V, VII, and VIII in the Amended Complaint;

2. ‘ Order that Respondents Zell and ADC&FI are liable for

penalties for violations of the Act, the Board Air Pollution

Regulations, and the Code of Federal Regulations;

3. Assess the Attorney General’s fees and costs in this

case against’Respondents Zell and ADC&FI; and ,‘

4. Order any ‘other relief it deems just and appropriate.
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Respectfully submitted1

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,
ex rel. LISA MADIGAN
Attorney General of the
State of Illinois

MATTHEWJ. DUNN, Chief
Environmental Enforcement/
Asbestos Litigation Divisi~on

By:
JOEL STERNSTEIN
Assistant Attorney General

Environmental Bureau
188 W. Randolph St. 20th Fl.
Chicago, Illinois6060l
(312) 814-6986
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CL~FU~’SO~1(1~

BEFORE THE ILLINOIS: POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD ,DEC ~ 02003

PEOPLE OF THE ‘STATE OF ILLINOIS, ‘ ) . , SThTE OFILLiNOIS
by LISA MADIGAN, Attorney ‘ ) ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ PoUt~onContro1Bo~rd1
General of the State of Illinois ) ‘ . ‘ ‘ .

Complainant, ‘ EXHIBIT
)‘ ‘‘

v. ‘ . . ‘‘ ) No. PCB 03-51

DRAWDRAPE AN, INC ~, an , )
I11~nois corporation, AMERICAN .‘ 1.,
DRAPERY CLEANERS & FLAIvIEPROOFERS,
INC., an Illinois corporation, and
RICHARD ZELL, an Illinois residEnt,

Respondents. . ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ )

NOTICE OF FILING ,

TO: See Attached Service List . ,

‘PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on December .30, 2003, the PeOple of
the State of Illinois filed with the Illinois Pollution Control
Board an AMENDEDCOMPLAINTFOR CIVILPENALTIES, true and correct
copies of which are attached and hereby served upon you.

Respectfully, submitted,

LISA MADIGAN
Attorney General
State of Illinois

BY __________

JOEL J. STERNSTEIN
Assistant Attorney General
Environmental Bureau
188 W. Randolph St., 20th Floor
Chicago, Illinois 60601
(312) 814-6986

Date: December 30, 2003

THIS FILING IS SUBMITTED ON RECYCLEDPAPER
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—. ~ . .__.~LERg’5 O,Fi~i~—
BEFORETHE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROLBOARD DEC 3 0 2U03

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, ) . , . : , STA~fEOFILUNO~
by LISA MADIGAN, Attorney ) . ~ Control Board
General of the State of Illinois ) . . . . ‘

Complainant, ‘ , . ~. ‘

V. ‘ r ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘) No. PCB 03-51.

DRAW .DRAPE CLEANERS, INC., an ‘ ) . . ‘ . ..

Illinois corporation, ‘AMERICAN . . ) ‘‘ .

‘DRAPERY CLEANERS’ & ‘F’LANEPROOFERS, ) . “ ‘ .

INC., an Illinois corporation, and )‘ ‘

RICHARD ZELL, an Illinois resident,)’ ‘ ‘ ‘

Respondents. ‘. . . . ‘ ) ‘ .‘ . . . .

AMENDEDCOMPLAINT FOR CIVIL PENALTIES

Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, by LISA

MADIGAN,’ Attorney Genera], of the State of Illinois, complains of

Respondents DRAWDRAPE CLEANERS,’ INC., AMERICAN DRAPERYCLEANERS

& FLAMEPROOFERS,INC., and RICHARD .ZELL as follows: ‘

COUNTI .‘ . ‘

AIR POLLUTION ‘

1. This Complaint .is’brought on behalf of the People

(“Complainant”) by the Attorney General on her, own motion and.,

upon the ‘request of the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency

(“Illinois EPA”) pursuant to the terms and,provisions of Section

31 of the Illinois Environmental Protection Act (“Act”), 415 ILCS

5/31(2002) . . ‘ ‘ . ‘ . , ‘ ,. ‘ . . ‘

2. ‘Specifically, ‘this Complaint is b±~ought against

Respondent DRAW DRAPE CLEANERS, INC. (“DDCI”) pursuant’ to Section
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31 of’ the Act, 415’ ILCS 5/31 (2002)’. This Complaint is brought

against RespondentsAMERICAN DRAPERY CLEANERS’&FLAMEPROOFERS,

INC. (“ADC&FI”) and RICHARD ZELL by the Attorney General on her.

own motion. . . . ‘ ‘

3. The Illinois EPA’ is an administrative agency of th~

State of Illinois, created pursuant to Section 4 of theAct, 415

ILCS 5/4 (2002), and.charged,’ inter alia, with the duty,of

enforcing the Act. . ‘ ‘ . ‘ . ‘

4. At all t~mesrelevant to ,thi’s Complaint, Respondent

DDCI was and is an Il],inois corporation duly organized and

existing under the laws of the State of Illinois and is in good

~tanding. . ‘ . ‘ ‘ .

5. At ‘all times relevant to this Complaint, Respondent

ADC&FI wa’s and is an Illinois corporation duly organized and

existing under the laws of the State of ‘Illinois and is in good

standing. ‘ ‘ . . ‘ ‘ ‘ . ‘

6. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Respondent

RICHARD ZELL’ was and is a’ resident of. the State of Illinois.

7. Respondents operate a facility located at 2235-2239 ‘

West RoScOe Street, Chicago, Cook County,’ Illinois, ‘60618

(“facility”). . , . ‘ . ‘

8. Respondents operate a petroleum solvent dry cleaning

ope~atibfl at the facility to clean drapes. . ‘ . .

9.’ Respondent RICHARD ZELL is the operator arid manager of
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both DDCI and ACDAF’I. ‘RICHARD ZELL is responsible for the day-

to-day’ o~erat ions of both DDCI and ACDAFI. RICHARD ‘ZELL is the

registered agent for DDCI and the’ corporate secretary ‘for ACDAFI.

10. Respondents installed Dryer #1 at its facility in 1980

and continue to operate Dryer #1. Dryer #1 is a petroleum

solvent dryer, but it is not a solvent recovery dryer Dryer #1

lacks a cartridge filter.’ ‘ .‘ ‘. ..

11. Respondents installed Dryer’ #2 at the .fac:ility in 1996

and continue to operate’ Dryer #2. Dryer #2 is a petroleum’

solvent dryer; but it is not a solvent recovery dryer. Dryer #2

lacks a cartridge filter. . .‘

12. Both Dryer #1 ap~d:Dryer #2 emit volatile organic

material (“VOM”) to the environment. :‘ ,

13. Section’3.315 of ‘the ~ct,, 415 ILCS 5/3.315 (2002), ‘

provides the following definition

“Person” is ‘any individual, partnership,”’.
‘co-partnership,’firm, company, limited ‘ .

liability company, corporation, ‘

association, joint stock company, trust,
estate, political subdivision, stá.te ,

agency, or any other legal. entity, .or,~
their legal representative, agent or
assigns. . ‘ ‘ . . ‘ . . .. . . ‘

14. Each Respondent is a “person” asHthe term is def,ined’in

Section 3.315 of the Act, 415 ILCS5/3.3l5 (2002). ,

15. . Section 3.165. of the Act, 415 .ILtS 5/3.165 (‘2002),

provideS the following def.init~.on: ‘ ‘

“Contaminant” is any solid, liquid, ‘or,. ,
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n

gaseousmatter, any odor, or any form’of . . ‘

energy,. from whatever source. ‘ ‘ ‘

16 -. VOM is a contaminant, as that term is defined, in

Section 3 165 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3 165 (2002)

17- Section 3.115 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.115 (2002),

provides the following definition: ‘ . ‘ ‘

“Air pollution” is the’presence in the ‘

atrnosphere of ‘one or more contaminants in
sufficient. ‘quantities and of such
characteristics and duration as to be
injurious to human, plant, or animal life, to
health, or to property, or to unreasonably
interfere with the enjoyrn~nt of life or
property.. . . . ‘

18. Section 9(a)’ of’the Act,’ 415 ILCS 5/’9(a) (2002), ‘

provides as follows: ‘ ‘ . . ..

No person shall:’. . . .

“(a) Cause or threaten or allow the discharge,
or emission of any contaminant into the ‘

environment in any State so as to cause or.
tend. to cause air pollution ‘in Illinois,
ei,ther alone or in combination with, ‘

contaminants from othe.r sources, so às’to
violateregulations or standards adopted by.
the Board under this Act; . .

19. Section 201.141 of the Illinois Pollution Control Board

(“Board”) Air Pollution Regulations, 35 I1l’~. Adm. Code 201.141,

provideS as follows: . ‘ ‘

Section 201.141 Prohibition of Air’ Pollution

No person shall cause or threaten or allow
the discharge or.emission of any contaminant
into the environment in any..State so as, ‘

either alone or in combination with
contam~.nants from other sources,, to cause or
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tend to cause ‘air pollution in I11’inois, ‘or
so as tO, .violate the provisions of this
Chapter, or so as to prevent the attainment
or maintenance of any applicable ambient air
quality standard. , ‘ . .

20. Rethpondents have emitted VOMinto the atmosphere from

Dryer #1 and Dryer #2 causing air pollution in violation of the

Federa11~ Er~forceable State Operating Permit (“FESOP”), in

violation of ‘the Act, and in violation of the Board’s

regulation’s. . ‘‘ .“ ‘ ‘ “ .‘ . . ‘ ‘ ...‘.. . . .

21 Respondents, by their conduct alleged herein, violated

Section 9(a)’ of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9 (a) (2002), and Section

201.141’ of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code

201.141. : ‘ .

WHEREFORE, Complainant, PEOPLE’OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,

respectfully requests that the Board’ enter a judgment in favor of

Complainant ‘and against Respondents DRAW DRAPE CLEANERS, INC.,

AMERICAN DRAPERYCLEANERS& FLAMEPROOFERS, INC., and RICHARD ZELL

on Count I: ‘ . . ‘ ‘ . ‘ ‘

1. , Authorizing a hearing in this matter at which ~ime

Respondents will be required to answer the allegations herein,

‘2,. Finding that Respondents have violated:Section 9(a) Of

the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(a) (2002)’, and Section 201.141 of ~the Board

Air pollution Regulation, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.141;’, ‘

3. Ordering Respondents to ceas,e and desist from further

violatiOnS of Section 9(a) of the Act, 415 .ILCS 5/9(a) (2002), and
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Sectiofl 201.141 of the Boa~dAir Pollution Regulation, 35 Iii.

Adm. Code 201.141; ‘ , ‘:

‘4. Assessing against Respondents’a civil penalty of Fifty

Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) for each violation of ‘the Act and.

pertinent’ Board Air Pollution Regulations, and an additional

civil ‘penalty of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for each day

of violation; . ‘. , ‘ :‘ ‘

5. ‘Taxing all costs in this action pursuant ~to Section

42(f) of the Act, including attox~ney, expert witness and

consultant fees, against Respondents; and. ‘ . ‘

6. Granting such other relief as the’Board’deems

appropriate and just.

.COUNTII .‘ .

VIOLATION OF STANDARDSFOR PETROLEUMSOLVENTDRY CLEANERS

i, - 18. Complainant realleges and incorporates by reference:

herein ‘paragraphs 1 through’ 18 of Count I ‘as paragraphs,‘1 t~i.’rough

18 of this Count II. . . ‘ .

19. Secti’on 218.607 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations,

3~~l. Adrn. Code 218.607, provides’ as follows: ‘

Standards for Petroleum Solvent Dry Cleaners

a) The owner or operator of a petroleum ,‘ .

solvent dry cleaning dryer shall either: ,‘

1) Limit emissions of VOMto the
atmosphere to an average of 3.5
kilograms of VOMper 100 kilograms dry
weight of articles dry cleaned, or
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2) , Install,and ope~atea’solvent
recovery’dryer in a manner such’that the,

‘dryer remains closed and the recovery.
phase continues until ,a final solvent
flow rate of 50 milliliters per r~tinute
is attained. . . ‘ ‘ .

b) The owner or operator of. a petroleum
solvent filtration system’ shall ,

either: . .. ‘ “

1) Reduce the VOMcontent in all
filtration’wastes’to 1.0 kilogram or
less per 100 kilograms dry weight of
articles dry cleaned, before disposal; .

and exposure ,to the atmosphere, or

2) . Install and, operate a cartridge
filtration system, and drain the ‘filter
cartridges in their sealed.housings for
8 hours or more before ‘their removal.

20. For both Dryer #1and,Dryer #2, Respondentshave failed

to limit VOM emissions to the atmosphereto an average of 3 5

kilograttl~ of VOM per 100 kilograms dry weight articies ‘cleaned.

:21. Neither Dryer #1 nor Dryer #2 are solvent recovery

dryers. , , . ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘,

22.. For both Dryer#l and Dryer #2, Respondentshave failed

to reduce, VOM content in all ‘filtration waste~ to 1 . 0 kilogram or

less per 100 ki1og~ams of articles dry cleaned, before disposal,

and exposure to the atmosph~re.” , . .

2,3. Neither Dryer *1 nor Dryer #2 have a cartridge

filtration system. ‘ .

24. Respondents,.by their conduct, as alleged herein,’

violated. Section 9(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(a) (20.02), .and
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Section’218.607 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations,’ 35 in.

Adm Code 218 607

WHEREFORE, Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,

respectfully requests that the Board enter a judgment ‘in favor of

Complainant ‘and against Respondents DRAW DRAPE CLEANERS, INC.,

AMERICANDRAPERYCLEANERS & FLAMEPROOFERS,INC , and RICHARD ZELL

on Count II~ ‘ ‘. . . “ ,. . . , ‘ ,. , .

i Authorizing a hearing in this matter at which time

Respondents will be required to answer the allegation’s herein;

‘2. Finding that Respondents’ have violated Sedtion 9 (a) of.

the Ace, 415 ILCS 5/9(a)’.(2002),”and Section 218.607 of’the’Board

~jr’PO11uti0nRegu1a~i0fl5, 35 Ill.. ~ Code 2l8..60’7~ ‘

3. Ordering Respondents to.cease and desist from further

violat±oflSpf Section 9’(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS. 5/9(a) (2002), and

Sectiofl 218 607 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill

Adm Code 218 607,

4’. Assessing against Respondents a civil penalty of Fifty

Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) for each violation of the Act and

pertinent Board Air Pollution.Regulations, and an additional

civil penalty of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for each day

of violation;, ,.

5. Taxing: all costs in this act±oi~ pursuant to ~ection

42(f) of the Act, inc1udi~g attorney, expert witness and.

consultant fees, against Respondents;’ and. ,
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6. ‘ Granting”such other relief as the Board’, deems

appropriate and just. ‘ ‘. - ,‘ , . ‘

COUNT’ III’ , “ ., .

FAILURE ‘TO’ CONDUCTADEQUATETESTING . ‘‘

1 -‘18. Cbmp1a~.nant realleges and incorporates by reference’

herein paragraphs 1 thro~igh 18 of Count I as paragraphs ‘1 through

18 of this Count III

19.’ Section 218.610 of the Board’ Air Pollution Regulations,

35 ill. Adm. Code’ 218.610, prov~.des as follows: ‘

Testing and, Monitoring’ ‘ ‘ . .

a) Compliance with Sections 218.607(b) (2),
218.608 and 218.609 ‘of this’Part shall be ‘

determined by visual .inspection;~ and

b) cbmpiiance with Sections 218.607 (a) (2).
and (b) (1) of this Part shall’ be determined.
by methods ‘described in EPA~450/3~82~009
(1982) . incorporated by reference in Section
218.112 of this Part. ‘ “ . . ,

20., ‘Section 218.607 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations,

35 ill. Adm. Code 218.607, sets standards for petroleum solvent,

dry cleaning operations; ‘ ‘ ‘

‘21. Respondents have failed to visually ‘inspect both.Dryer

*1 and Dryer “#2. In order t’o ‘demonstrate compliance with the ‘

requirements of’ SectiOn 218,607(b) (2) of the Board Air Pollution

Regulat~On5, ‘35 Ill. “Adrn. Code 218.607(b) (2). ‘ . .. “

22. Respondents’ have failed to follow the methods’ described

±nEPA-450/3-82-009 (1982) in.order to demonstrate compliance

9



with SeCtions 218.607(a) (2)~and.218.607(b’)(l) of’the Board Air

pollutiQfl Regulations’, 35 Iii, Adm. Code 218.607(a) (2). and

(b) (i), ‘for both Dryer #1 and pryer #2.

23 Respondents, by their conduct as alleged herein,

vidlated Section 9(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(a) (2002), and

SectiOn 218 610 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill

Adm Code 218 610

WHEREFORE, Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,

respectful].Y requests that the Board enter a judgment in favor of

Complainant and against.,Respondents DRAWDRAPE CLEANERS, INC.,

AMERICAN DRAPERY CLEANERS & FLAMEPROOFERS, INC., and RICHARD:ZELL

on Count III

i Authorizing a hearing in this matter at which time

Respondents will be required to answer the~ allegations herein,

2 Finding that Respondents have violated Section 9(a) of

the’ Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(a) (2002), ‘and Section 218.610. of the Board

Air pollution Regulations, 35 .111. Ad.m. Code.218.610; ‘

‘3. Ord~ring Respondents’ to cease and desist from further

violations of Section 9(a) of the Act, 415 II~CS 5/9 (a) (2002) , and,

SectiOri 218 610 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill

Adrn Code 218 610,

4., Assessing against Respondents a. civil penalty of Fifty

Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) for each violation of. the Act and

‘pertinent’Board Air Pollution Regulations, and. an additional

10



civil penalty of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000 00) for each day

of violation,

5 Taxing all costs in this action pursuant to Section

42(f) of the Act,, including attorney, expert’ witness’ and

consu1ta~1t’fees against Respondents; and ‘, ‘ .

6 Granting such other relief as the Board deems

appropriate ,and just. ‘ “ .‘ ‘ ,‘ ,~ . ‘ ,

couNTlv, : ‘ ‘ :, -‘

CONSTRUCTION.OF AN EMISSIONS SOURCEWITHOUTA PERMIT

1-16. CQmplainant realleges ‘and incorporates by reference

herein paragraphs 1 through 16 of Count .1 as paragraphs 1 through

16 ,of this Count IV. ,‘ . ‘ .. . . ‘

17 Section 9(b) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(b) (2002)

provides as follows: ‘

No person shall

* * ‘ * , . . ‘ , . ,

(b) Construct, install, or operate any
equipment, facility; ‘vCI~.icle,’’vessel,’ or
aircraft capable. of, causing or contributing
to air’ pollution or. designed to prevent air
pollution, of any type designated by Board
regulations.. without a. permit granted by the ,

‘Agency, or in violation of any cOnditions ‘ ,

imposed by such permit. . ‘ ‘

18. Section 201.102 of the Illinois Pollution Control Board

(~‘Eoard”) Air Pol1ut~on ‘R~gu1ations,, 35 Ill. Adm. Code.20l.102,

provideS~ in pertinent part, the following definitions: .

“Emission Source”: any equipment or facility

.11



‘of a type capable of emitting specified air
‘contaminants to the atmosphere. .‘ ‘

“New Emission- Source”: any. emission source,
the construction, or’ modification of which is
cOmmencedon or after April 14, .1972. .

“Specified. Air Contaminant”: any air
contaminant as to which this Subtitle
contains emission standards or other specific
limitations and any contaminant re~1ated ‘.. ., .

Illinois pursuant, to Section 9.1 of the Act.

19 VOM is a specified air contaminant as defined by

Section 201 102 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Iii

Adm Code 201 102

20 Dryer #2 is a “new emission source” as that term is

defined’bY Sectioh 201.102 of the Board Air Pollution

Regulations, 35 Ill Adrn Code 201 102 because it is capable of

~mitting VOM. . ‘ “ . ‘ . . ‘ ‘ .. . .‘ . ,

21 Section 201 142 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations,

35 Ii]... Adm. Code 201.142,.provides-as follows,: “.

Section 201.142 Construction Permit Required .

No person shal,1 cause ‘or allow’ the ‘ . ., ‘ . ‘

construction of any new emission source or
any new air pollution control equipment, . or
cause ‘or ‘allow t~e modification of any
existing emission source or air pollution
cOntrol ‘equipment, without first obtaining a
construction permit, from the Agency, “except’.

‘as provided in Section 201.146.

22. Respondents’ insta1l’ed’Dryer’.#~ ‘at the, facility without

first” obtaining a permit.from the Illinois EPA. , ‘ .

23. Respondents,’by their conduct as alleged herein, .

12’ ‘.... . . ‘‘‘



violated Section 9(b) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(b)’(2002), and

,Section 201.142 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, ‘35 Ill.

Adm. Code’ 201.142. , “ “ : , ‘ , ‘. . . , . ,

WHEREFORE, Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,

respectfully ‘requests.. that the Board enter a judgment ±11 favor, of

COmplainant and agä.inst ReCpondents DRAWDRAPE CLEANERS, INC.,

AMERICANDRAPERYCLEANERS& FL~AMEPROOFERS,.’INC.,. and RICHARD’ ZELL

on Count IV: ‘ “ ‘ ‘ , , .‘ .

1. “ Authorizing’a hearing.in this matter at which time’,

Respondents will be required to answer the allegations herein;

2. Finding that Respondents have violated Section 9(b) of

the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(b) (2002), and Section 201.142 of the Board

Air Pollution’RegulatiOfl,”35.Ill. Adm. Code ‘201.142;

‘3. Ordering, Respondentsto cease and desist from further

violations of SectiOn 9’(b) of the Act,. 415 ILCS 5/9(b,) (2002), and

Section 201.142 of the’Board Air Pollution RegulatiOn, 35,111.

Adm. Code 201.142; . ‘ ‘ ,

4. Assessing against Respondents a civil penalty of Fif~y

Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) for. each violation of the Adt and

pertinent Board Air Pollution Regulations, ‘and an additiOnal

‘civil penalty’ of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for each day

of violation’;’ ., ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ . .

5’. Taxing all cOsts in this action pursuant to Section

42(f) of the Act, including attorney,’ expert witness and

13



consulta.11t fees, agaiinst Respondent’s; and “ ‘ ‘

6. “ ‘Granting such other relief as the Board’: deem~ , . ‘

a~proprJ.3~teand just. ., . ‘

COUNTV . ‘.‘ ,

OPERATIONOF ‘AN EMISSIONS SOURCEWITHOUT A PERMIT

1-16. ‘ Complainant realleges ‘and incorporates by’reference

herein paragraphs 1.throi.igh16 of Count IV as .para~raphs 1

through 16 of this Count ‘V. , , . ‘ ‘ . ‘ ‘ ,

17. Section 201.143 of the ~oa±~d:Air ~ol1i.~tion Regulat~.onth,

35111. Adrn. Code 201.143, provides, in pertinent part, as

follows: . . , . ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘

Operating Permit for New Sources . ‘

No’petson shall cause’or allow the operation
of any new emission source or new air ‘ ‘ .

pollution control equipment-of a type’for . ‘

which a co’nstruction permit is ‘required by
Section 201.142 without first obtaining, an .

operating permit from the Agency, except for ,

- such.testing operations as may’ be authorized ,

by the construction, permit,. ‘ .,

18. Since l996,Respondents have operated and continue to

‘operate Dryer., *2 without first obtaining a permi~ from’the

Illinois EPA. , .. . . . .

19. Respondents,..by th~ir”cpnduct as alleged’herein,

violated Section 201.143 of the BOard Air Pollution Regulations,

35 ill. Mm. Code 201.143, and Section 9(b) of the Act, 415 ILCS

5/9(b) (2002). . . ‘ ‘ .

WHEREFORE, Comp1ai~iant,. PEOPLE OF THE STATE ,OF ILLINOIS,

14 ..



respectfuIly,’.reqUestS that the Board enter a jud~ment in favor of

Complainant and against Respondents DRAW DRA.PE’CLEANERS, INC.,

AMER~CAN DRAPERY CLEANERS& FL~NEPROOFERS,INC., arid RICHARD ZELL

on Count V:. ‘‘‘ ‘ ‘ , ‘: ‘‘

‘1.:’ Authorizing a hearing, in this matter at which time ,

Respondents ‘will be required to answer; the allegations herei±i;

2 Finding that P.espondents have violated Section 9 (b) of

.theAct, 415 ILCS, 5/9(b).(2002),and’Section 201.143 of theBoard

• ‘ Air Pol1utiOn~ ReguIatidns, 35111. -Adm~ Code 201.l43~ . . .

3. - Ordering Respondents to cease and desist from further

violations of Section 9(b) ‘of the Act, 415 ILCS 5[9’(b) (2,002), and

Section 201.143 of the, Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill..

Adm. Code 201.143; , ‘ ‘. . ‘ . , . ‘ “ . . ‘ ‘

.4. Assessing against Respondents a civil penalty of F’ifty

Thousand Dollars” ($50,000.00) f Or each violation of the Act: and

pertinent Board Air ‘Pollution Regulations, and an additional

“civil penalty’of Ten Thousand Dollars (‘$10,000.00) ,for each day

of violation; - . ‘ ‘ --__________________ _____

5. ‘ Taxing all posts in this action pursuant to Section .

42(f) of the Act, including attorney, expert witness and

consultant’fees, against Respondents; and

‘5. ‘~Granting such other relief as the Board deems

app±opriate and’ just’... . ‘ ‘ ‘. , ‘

15



CO1JNT,V~L . , ; ‘

VIOLATION ‘OF FE~OP’CONDITION 5 ,. , ‘ ‘~

1-15. ‘, Complainant realleges and incorporates by reference

herein paragraphs 1.through 4, 7 through 8, and 10 through 16 of

‘Count. I and paragraphs 17 and 18 of Count IV as paragraphs. 1.

‘through 15 of this ‘Coun~ VI. , ~. ‘ .‘ ., ‘

1G Respondent DDCI was granted a FESOP to operate its

,emis’siofl3 :sources. The FESOP was’. granted on January 13, 19,98 and

expires on January 13, 2003

17. Respondent DDCI’sFESOP, No’. 95100005, ‘provide’s, in

pertineflt:Part~ the following condition: - ,. . .

* ‘ * . . ‘ * ‘

5.. The Permittee shall comply with the
standards,,operating practices, - , ‘ . .

‘inspections and repair of leaks, • .

and the testing and monitoring
requirements for petroleum solvent ‘- . . .

‘dry cleaners as specified in 35
Ill. Mm. Code 218.607 through ‘, .

.218.510.” .‘ . .~

18. By violating the Board Air Pollution Regulations’ ,at,

SectionS 218.607 and 2.18.610, 35 Ill’. Adm. Code 218;607 and -

218.610; ReSpondent DDCI also viblated Condition No .‘ ~ of its

FESOP No.’ 95100005. By violating Condition No.,. 5 of its FESOP

No.’ 95100005, Respondent DDCI,also violated 9(b) of the Act, 415

ILCS 5/9(b) (2002). , ‘ . ‘ .

WHEREFORE, Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE~S.TATE.OF ILLINOIS,

respectfully requests that the Board e~ter. a judgment’ in favor of

16



spo~d~tTDRrTRAPECI3EANERS~INCTofl

Count V~: . - . , .‘ “ ‘. ,

1. . ~uthorizing a hearing in this matter at’which time

‘Respondent DDCI will be required to answer the alLegations

1~erein;’ , . , ,‘ . ‘ ‘ ‘. ‘

2. Finding that Re’~pondent‘DDCI has violated Condition’5

of FESOPNO. 95100005, and Section .9(b) of the. Act ‘415 ILCS

‘5/9(b) (2002Y; ‘ , .‘. . ‘ . , ., _i~ . ‘..‘. . . . ‘

3. Ordering Respondent DDCI to ceaseand desist from “

further violations of Condition S of FES.OP No.. 95100005,’ ‘Section

9(b) of the Act, “415’ ILC$ 5/~(b)(2002);’ ‘ ‘ ,~ ‘ ‘ . .

4. ‘ Assessing against Respondent .DDCI a civil penalty of

Fifty ThousaridDollars ($50,000.00) for each violation of the Act,,

and pertinent Board Air Pollution Regulations, and an additional

civil penalty of Ten Thousand Dol~.ars”($10,000.00) for,,,each day

of violation; . , ‘ , ‘ ‘ . “ , . . ‘

5. ‘ Taxing all costs in this action pursuant to Section

42(f) of the Act, including attorney; expert witness.and

~consu1tant fees; against Respondent; arid - ‘. . ,, ,

6. Granting such other relief as the:.Eoarddeems ,

appropriate and just. . . .~.. , ~, ., -

COUNT VII . “ ‘ . ,

• . INSTALLATION OF A NON-SOLVENT RECOVERY DRYER ‘ ‘

AND LACK OF A CARTRIDGE FILTER ON DRYER ‘*2, -

1-14. Cotnplainant”realleges and incorporates by reference

17



~~~aragrä~hs .1 ~

14 of t~iis Count VII. ‘ ‘ . ‘ . ‘

15 .‘ Sectio~ 9.1(d) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9.lç.d) (2002).,

provideS~ in pertinent part, as follows: . . .

No person shall: ‘ ‘ . .

(1) ‘ violate any provisions’ of Sections 111,
112, 165 or 173 of the Clean’ Air Act, as now
or hereafter amended, or federal regulations
adopted ‘pursuant thereto; or ‘ ‘ ‘‘ ‘

(2) , constn~ct, install, modify or operate.. ‘

.aiiy equipment,building, facility, source or
installation.which.is subject to regulation
under Sections 111, 112, 155 or 173,o’f ‘the .

‘Clean. Air Act, as now or hereafter amended,
except in compliance with ,the requirements of ,

such Sections and federal regulations adopted
.pur~uant thereto, and no,such action shall be’
undertaken without a pe’rrnit.granted by the
Agency or in violation of any conditions ‘

- imposed by such permit. . ‘ ,. ‘

16.. . Sections 60.620 to 50.625 of Title’40 of the Code of

Federal Regulations1 40 C’.F.R. 60.620-60.625, were adopted ‘

pursuant. tOS~ction 111 ‘of the Clean Air Act.- . , ,,

17. Sections 60.620 to 60.625 of Title’40 of the Code of

‘Federal Regulations, 40 C.F.R. 60.520-50.625, set standards of

perforrttaflCe.for.’Petroleum dry cleaners. . . . .

18. Section .60.622’ of Title 40 of the ,Code of Federal

ReguiatiOflsi 40,C.F.R. 60.522 provides,’ in pertinent part, as

follows’.: .

Standards for vOlatile organic compounds

(a) Each affected petroleum solvent dry

18



—— “ ___ ____

petroleum dry cleanIng plant. after~ December
14,1982, shall be a solvent recbvery’dryer.
The solvent recovery dryer(s)’, shall be , .

properly installed,’ operated and maintained.

(b) Each affected petroleum ‘solvent f liter , ‘

that is installed at a petroleum dry cleaning’
plant after.Deceft~.ber 14, 1982,’shall be a . .

cartridge filter.’ Ca’rtridge filters shall be’ ‘

drained in’their sealed housings for at least
8 hours’prior,to their removal1 .,

‘19., Dryer #2.;was’installed after’December 14, ‘1982. It i,s

not asolven~ recovery dryer, and it, lacks a cartridge filter.,

20. Respondents, by their,conduct ‘as , alleged herein, ‘

violated Secti9n 60.622 o’f,Title,40 of ‘the. Code of Federal.

Regulations, 40 C.F.R. 60.622,’ ‘and Section 9.1(d) of the Act, 415

ILCS, 5/9.1(d) (2002) . ‘ .. ‘ ‘. ‘ ‘ . , , ‘ ‘

WHEREFORE, Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, “

respect~ully requests that the Board enter a judgment in favor of

Complainant and against Respondents DRAW DRAPE CLEANERS,, INC.,

ANERICAN DRAPERYCLEANERS& FLANEPROOFERS,”INC.,, and RICHARD ZELL

on Count VII: . . . ‘ .

1. Authorizing a hearing in this matter”at which time.

Respondents will’ ‘be required.:tq answer the allegations herein;

2. Finding’that Respondents’have~vio1ated Section”6O.~2’2 .-

of TitJ.e 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations, 40 C.F.R. 60.622,.

and Section 9.1(d). of th~ Act, 415 ILCS 5/9.1(d) (2002)

3. Ordering Respondents to cease and desist’ from further

violations of Section 60.622’of Title 40.of the. Code of Federal

19



~g~l~EJi~T 40 ~T ~ ~6 72,~ and S~ion 9T~f eA~t~415 - -

~LCS-.~/9.1(d) (2002); ‘. ‘~ . . “. ,. . .

4 Assessing against Respondents a civil penalty of Fifty

Thousand Dollars ($50,000 00) for each violation of the Act and

pertinei~t Board Air Pollution Regulations, and an additional

civil penalty of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000 00) for each day

of violation, I

5 Taxing all costs in this action pursuant to Section

42(f) of the Act, including attorney, exp~rt witn:es’s and ‘ .

consultant fees, against Respondents; and ‘ , ‘ ,

6 Granting such other relief as the Board deems

appropriate and just

COUNT VIII . ‘, ‘. . ,

FAILURE ‘TO PERFORM AN INITIAL FLOW RATE TEST ON DRYER #2

1 - 19. Complainant realleges ‘and incorporates by r~ference

herein p~.ragraphs 1 through 19 of Count VII as paragraphs 1

th±~ough19 of this Count VIII. ‘ ‘ .

20. Section 60.624 of Title 40 of the Code ,of Federal ‘

RegulatiOflS. 40 C~F~R~60.524, ‘provides, in pertinent part, as

follows:’ , ‘ . , . ,

Test methods and procedures

Each owner or operator of an affected
facility subject to the provisions of

- ~60.622(a) shall perform an’ initial test to
verify that” the flow, rate of recovered
solvent from the solvent recovery dryer’ .at
the termination of the recovery cycle is no

20



~eater than7~05~i~~ pe~ti~iite. T~Its
test shall be conducted for a duration of no
less than ‘2 weeks du~ing. which no less than
50 percent of the dryer loads shall be .

monitored for their final recovered solvent
- flow rate. ‘ ‘

.21. Respondents did i~ot initially test Dryer #2 to ‘verify

the flow rate of recovered solvent,, after Dryer’ #2 was installed

in 1996. .. .‘

22. Respondents, ‘by their conduct ,as alleged,herein,

violated, Section 5.0.624 of Title 40 of the Code of Federal

RegulationS 40 C.F.R. 60.624, and Section 9.1(d) of the Act, 415

ILCS 5/9.1(d) (2002) .

WHEREFORE, Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,

r~spectfullY requests that the Board enter a, judgment in favor of

Complainant and against Respondents DRAWDRAPE CLEANERS, INC.,

AMERICAN DRAPERYCLEANERS& FLANEPROOFERS, INC., and RICHARD ZELL

on Count VIII: .‘ ‘ . , ‘

i. Authorizing a hearing in this matter,at which time

Respondents will be required to answer the allegations herein;

2. ‘ Finding that Respondents have violated Section 60.624

of Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations, 40 C.F.R. 60.624,

and Section 9.1(d) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9.1(d) (2002);

3. Ordering Respondents to cease and desist from further

violations of Section 60.624 of Title 40 of the Code of Federal

RegulationS, 40 C.F.R. 60.624, and Section 9.1(d) of the Act, 415

ILCS 5/9.1(d)’(2002);
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1ff Re~5id~i~ ~‘ ~i~TiT~ ityfFtfty~ ~‘~~“:

‘ Thousand Dollars ($50~.000.00) for each violation of theAct atid

pertinent Board Air Pollution Regulations, and an additional ‘

civil penaltyof Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for each day

of violation; . .

5. Taxing all costs in this action pursuant to Section

42 (f) of the Act, including attorney,’ expert witness ,and

consultant fees, against .Res~ondents; and. ‘

. . 6. Granting such other relief as the Board deems

appropriate and just. , . .

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,
ex rel. LISA MADIGAN, Attorney.
General of the State of Illinois

MATTHEWJ. DUNN, Chief
Environmental Enforcement/.
Asbestos Litigation Division

By: ~ ~ fl4~t

ROSEMARIE CAZEAU, C ef
Environmental Bureau
Assistant Attorney General

Qf. Counsel,: .

JOELJ. STERNSTEIN .

Assistant Attorney General
Environmental Bureau
188 W. Randolph St.,

20
th Floor

Chicago, Illinois ‘60601
(312) 814-6986

~ \c o~\ErwirOflmeflta1\~0Et.\Ca5eDo~umeflts\Dr3w Drape\and-corn~1ai~-fir~a1
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE ‘‘

I, JOEL J. STERNSTEIN, an Assistant Attorney General,

certify that on the
30

th day of December 2003, I caused to be

served by First Class Mail the foregoing AMENDED COMPLAINT ‘FOR

CIVIL PENALTIES to the parties namned’on t’he attached service

list, bydepo’siting same in postage’prepaid enveiopes’with the

United States Postal Service located at 100 West’Randolph Street,’

Chicago, Illinois 60601. .

_________

JOEL J. STERNSTEIN

~ Docurnertts\D~awDrape\neti~of fj1io~•wpd



v.

DRAW DRAPE CLEANERS, INC.,
an Illinois corporation,

‘Respondent. _________

TO: See Attached Service List

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE’that onJune27, 2003, the’ People of the

State of ‘Illinois.filed with the Illinois Pollution Control Board
COMPLAINANT’S MOTION FOR PARTIAL SUMMARYJUDGMENT, true and
correct copies of wh~ch are attached and hereby served upon you.,

Respectfully submitted,’

LISA MADIGAN
Attorney General , ..~

State of Ii.- inois

BY:’ _________

JOELJ. STERNSTEIN
Assistant Attorney General
Environmental Bureau
188 W. Randolph St., 20th’ Floor
Chicago, Illinois ‘ 60501

(312) 814-6986 -

THIS FILING IS SUBMITTED ON RECYCLEDPAPER

BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROLBOARD

PEOPLE OF’ THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,

Complainant,

RECEIVED

CLERK’S OFFICE

) JUN 27.2003

STATE OFILLINOIS
Pollution Control’Board

No. PCB 03-51
)

• ..)

NOTICE OF_FILING

EXHLBIT



SERVICE LIST

Mr. BradleY Halloran, Esq. ,

i11ino~~ Pollution Control Board
‘~.oow. Randolph Street, Suite 11-500

Chicago, Illinois 60601

Ms.’ MaUZ~eefl Wozniak, Esq. -

i11inoi~ Environmental Protection Agency

1021,North Grand Avenue, East
P.O. BOX 19275 . ‘

springfield, Illinois 62702

Ms. Michele Rocawich, Esq. .

~5jssberg and Aâsociates, Ltd.
401 S. LaSalle Street, Suite’ 403

Chicago, Illinois .60605



BEFORETHE XLLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROLBOARD CLERK’SOFFICE’

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, ) JUN 2 ~20~3
ex rel.. LISA MADIGAN, Attorney “ ‘ ) . • ““ ‘ STATE OFI
General of the State of Illinois’ ) .‘ • . Poll~ti0~cOntroj~d

‘Complainant, : ‘ ,: , ‘ ) ‘ • ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ .

‘ V. . ‘ .. ) Nd.. PCB 03-51

DRAW DRAPE CLEANERS, INC.,’ , ) . ‘ ,~ • :

an Illinois Corporation,

Respondent. - . ‘ ), ‘ . ‘‘ .

COMPLAINANT’S MOTION FOR PARTIAL StTh~V!ARY tTtYDGMENT

plaintiff, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, ex rel LISA

MADIGAN,Attorney General of the State of Illinois, and pursuant

to Section 101.516 pf ,the Illinois Pollution ‘Control’ Board

procedural Regulations, 35 Ill.. Adm. Code 101.516, hereby moves

for the entry of an order granting summary judgment in favor of

the Complainant and against Respondent DRAW DRAPE CLEANERS INC

INTRODUCTION “ ‘ .

An eight-count complaint waC filed in this matter on October

15, 2002.. A copy of ,which is attached hereto,and incorporated

herein as Exhibit A. This compiaint’involves’ a. petroleum solvent

dry oleaniflg ‘facility operated by Respondent located at 223,5-2239

West RoscOe Street, Chicago, Cook County, Illinois Complainant

seeks summary judgement against Respondent’ on four of the eight

counts: Count IV, construction of’an emissions source without a

permit; Count V, operation of an emissions source without a

permit; Count VII’, installation of a non-solvent recovery dryer

1



and lack of a- cartridge filter; .nd Count VIII, failure t.o

perforLtL an initialf’low rate’ test’on Dryer #2. ‘ , .

Complainant served Respondentwith written’discovery on’

April 11, 2003, including a First Requ~st for Admission of Facts.

Respondent subsequently served Plaintiff with, responses to

written discovery including Draw Drape Cleaners Response to First

• Request, to Admit (“Response”) . In the Response,Respondent

admitted tnany,,facts pertinent to the alleged violations in the

Complaint The Response is attached hereto and incorporated

herein as Exhibit B. . ‘ ‘ ‘ . ‘ ‘..

Respondent admitted that it failed’ to secure the required ‘

construction and operating permits forDryer #2 at i’ts facility..’

Respotident also a~xn~.ttedthat Dryer #2 is not a ‘solv~nt recovery

dryer and that Dryer #2 lacks a cartrIdge filter. Furthermore, . .

ResPoflde~~tadmitted tha,t it failed to perform an initial’ flow’

rate test on Dryer #2. There are no material questions of fact

or law with respect to Counts IV, V, VII, and VIII of the’

Complaint. Complainant is entitled to summary judgment on those

Count5. - . . ,

Stfl~ARY1TZYDGMENT ~STANDARD ,: ‘ ‘

Summary judgment is appropriate when the pleadings,

depositions, admissions on file, and affidavits disclose there’ is

no genuine issue as to any.material fact and.the moving pa.rtyis

entitled to judgment ,as a matter of law, Dowd & Dowd,’Ltd. V.
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GleasQn, 181 Ill.2d 460, 483, 693 N.E.2d 358,- 370 (1998) . Use of

summary judgment procedure is to be encouraged as an aid in

expeditious disposition of lawsuits, however, it is drastic means

- . • of disposing of litigation and should be allowed ‘only ‘when the -

right of the moving party is clear and free of ‘doubt. ‘Gilbert v.

Sycamore Municipal Hospital’, 156 Ill.2d 511, 518,. 6,22 N.E’.2d 788,

792 (1993) Although summary judgment is drastic, the instant

‘case is tailor made ‘for this type of disposition and resolution.

Furthermore; using sti.mmary judgment as a means of, finding

Respondent liable for violations of the laws and regulations as

alleged, in Counts IV, V1 VII,~ and VIII will limit the’ fifture

proceedings by the Complainant against Respondent and will

dispose of a portion of the lawsuit Complainant’s right to

summary judgment on Counts IV, -V, VII, and VIII is’ clear and free

of doubt. This is an appropriate use of summary judgment.

- . ADMITTED’ BACKGROITNDFACTS AND BACI<GROUND LAW

At all times’ relevant to the complaint, Respondent was/is an

Illinois corporation in good standing and was/is the dperator of

a petroleum solvent, dry cleaning facility (facility) for cleaning

drapes Admitted by Respondent in Exhibit B - Response Nos 1,

2, 3.’. . . ‘ ‘ - , . .

- Respondent installed Dryer #2 at the facility in. 1996, and

operated Dryer #2 until sometime in 2001 or 2002. . Respondent

used Dryer #2 to dry clean drapes after it was in~talled. Dry~r
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#2 also lacks a cartridge filter Dryer #2 emitted volatile

-organic material(”VOM”, also known’ as volatile organic -

compounds) to the environment after’ it’ was ‘installed until

sometime in2001 or .2002’.’ Admitted byRespondent inExhibit B -

Response Nos. 6, 7, ~, ii. ‘ . , ‘ . . . , .

Section 3 315 of the Illinois Environmental Protection Act

‘(“Act”), 415.ILCS 5/3.315 (20’02),,provides the following

defixilt ion

“Person” ‘is any individual, partnership, co-
partnership, firm, company, limited liability
company, corporation,.association, joint ‘ .

stock company, trust,. eätate, political
subdivision, state agency, or any other ‘legal’ -

entity, or their legal representative, agent ‘ ‘

or assigns. . - . . .‘ ‘ .• ; .

Respofldeflt’is a “perS,on”aS the term is defined in SectIon 3.315

of the Act. . , . , ‘. ‘

ZRGOMENT- COUNTS IV AND ‘V ‘ ‘

The Act ‘and the Illinois Pollution Control’ Board (“Board”)

Air pollution Regulations state that no person shall’ construct or

operate an emissions source without first obtaining.proper . -. ‘ , , -

permitS from the Illinois Environméntal’Protectior~.’Agency .

(“AgencY”). Count IV of the Complaint alleges that’Respondent

~onstrUCted an emissions source witho~.it a permit while Count ,V of

the Complaint alleges that ‘Respondent operated an emissions

source without a permit., . ‘ ‘. .

Section 9(b) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(b) (2002), provides as
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follows:

No persoh shall:

•* .‘* *‘

(b), Construct,’ install,’ or operate any
equipment, facility, vehicle, vessel, or
aircraf.t capable.of causing or contributing
to air pollution or.designed to prevent air
pollution,’ of any type designated by. Board
regulations, without a permit granted.by the,
Agency, ‘or in violation of any’- conditions
im~osed by such: permit. ‘

Section.3..115 of the Act, ~15.ILCS 5/3.115 (2002), provides

the following definition: - . ‘ . . . ‘

“Air, pollution” is the presence in ~he
atmosphere ‘of one or more contaminants in

- sufficient quantities and of such
characteristics and’duration’as to be “ ‘ -

injurious to human, plant, or,ariitnàl life, to
health, or to property, or to.unreasonably

- interfere with’the enjoyment Of, life or .,

property

Section 3.155 of the Act, ‘415 ILCS 5/3.165~ (2002), provides

the following definition: - . ‘ . .

“Contaminant” is any solid1 liquid, or . ‘

gaseousmatter, any odor, or any form of.
energy, from whatever source. ‘

VOMiC a contaminant, as that term is definedin Section 3.165 of

the Act, 415 ILCS’ 5/3.165’ (2002) . ‘Dryer #2’ is equipment that is

“capable of causing or contributing to air pollution since it is a

source of VOM. ‘ ‘ . . , .

Section 201.142 of the Boa~dAir, Pollution Regulations, 35

Ill. Adm. Code 201.142, ‘provides as follows:
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Construction Permit Required

No person shall cause or allow the -

construction of any new emission source or
any new air pollution control equipment, or
causeor allow the modification of’any
existing emission source or air pollution
control equipment, without first obtaining a’
construction permit from the’Agency, except
as provided in Section 201 146

Section 201.143’,of,’ the Board Air Pollution’Regulations, 35

~ Acirn. Code 201.143, provIdes, in’pèrtinent part, .‘as follows:

Operating Permit for.New Sources

No person shall cause or allow the operation,
of any new emission source or new air ‘

pollution control equipment of a type-for
whi~ha construction permit,is. required by
Section 201.142 without first obtaining’ an ‘

operating permit from the:Agency, except for’
such.’testing operations as.rnay’be authorized
,by the construction.permit. - -

Section 201.102 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35

Ill. Adm. Code’201.102, provides, in pertinent part, the

following definitions: . ‘ . . ‘

“Emission Source”: any equipment or facility
of a type capable of emitting specified, air
contaminants to the atmosphere.

* * ‘. * .

“New Emission Source”.: any emission s~urce,
the construction or modification of’ which is
commenced on or after April 14, 1972. ‘

* .* .

‘“Specified Air Contaminant”: any.air ‘ .

contaminant as tO which this Subtitle
contains emission standards ,orother’specific
limitations and any contaminant regulated
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Illinois pursuant to Section 9 1 of the Act

VON is a “specified air contaminant” as defined by Section

201,102 ~f the Board Air Pollution Regulations. pryer #2. is a

“new emission source” as that term is defined by Section 201 102

‘ of the Board’ Air’Pollution ‘Regulations.because it is capable of

‘emitting VON.: ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ . .

RespOndent,installed Dryer #2 at it’s facility without.first

obtainilig a permit from the Agency. Admitted by Respondent in

Exhibit B, - Response’ No. 40. - In addition,, Respondent operated

Dryer #2 without first obtaining a permit ~rom the Agency.

Admitted by.Respondent, in Exhibit B - RespdnseNo.41.. (Note -

• that the year “2996” in Response No, 41 is obviously a’ typo and~’

should be “1996” which is what the corresponding No 41 15 in the

Complainant’ s First Request for Admission of Facts - See Exhibit

C.) . . . , ‘ , ‘ •, , . ,

Thus, Respondent’ violated Section 9(b) of ‘the ‘Act and

Sedtiofls 201.142 and 201.143 of the Board Air Pollution

Regulations as ‘alleged in Counts IV and V of the Complaint.

Summary judgment for Counts IV and V of the ‘Complaint should be

awarded to Complainant

A~.GtTh1ENT - COUNTSVII AND VIII~ .

The Act and the associated provisions’ in the Code’ of Federal

Regulations state that petroleum dry. cleaners may only u’se .

solvent recOvery dryers with ‘cartridge filters. In addition, the
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dry cleaner must do an initial test on the dryer to verify flow

rate of recovered solvent. Count VII of ‘the C~mplaintalleges

that Respondent did not install a solvent recovery dryer with a

cartridge filter while Count Viii of the Complaint alleges that

.RespOfl.defl~ did not perform the”initial test.

- Section 9.1(d) ‘of the Act, 4.15 ILCS 5/9.1(d) (2002),

provideS~ i~i. pertinent part, as follows

No person shall

(1) violate any provisions of Sections 111, ‘ .

112, 165 or’l73 of the Clean Air Act’, as now
or hereafter amended, or fedEral, regulations ‘

adopted pursuan.t,thereto; or . . . . . . . ‘,

(2) ‘construct, jn’stall, modify or -operate

any equipment, building, facility, source or
installation which is,subject to regulation ,

under Sections ‘111, 112, 155 or, 173 of the -

-Clean, Air Act, as now or hereafter amended, .

except in compliance with the requirements of ‘

such Sectionsand federal. regulations adopted
pursuant thereto, and no such action ..shall be
undertaken without a permit granted by the
Agency •or in violation of’any conditions ,.. .

imposed by such permit. ‘‘ ‘ ,. . ,

SectiOns 60.620 to 60.625 of Title 40 of the Code of Federal

RegulatiOns, .40 C.F.R. 60.620-60.625, were’,adopted pursuant to . ‘

Section 111 of the Clean Air Act. Sections 60.620 to 60.625; ofl :‘

Title 40of the Code of Federal Regulations set standardsof

performance for petroleum dry cleaners. ‘Section 60.522 of Title

40 of the Code of Federal Regulations, 40. C.F.R. 60.622,

provides, in pertinent part,. as follows: ‘ .

8



‘Standards for volatile organic’ compounds

(a)’ Each affected ‘petroleum solvent dry -

cleaning dryer’that is installed at- a
petroleum dry. cleaning plant. after December’:
14, .1982, shall, be a solvent recovery dryer.
The solvent recovery dryer (.s) - shall be,

properl.y installed, operated and maintained.

(b) ‘Each affected petroleum solven� filter ,

• ‘ ‘ that is ‘installed.at a petroleum dry cleaning
‘plant after.Decembe.r 14, 1982, shall be-a ,

- cartridge, filter. , Cartridge filters shall be
drained ~ their sealed ‘housings for ‘at least
8 hours prior to their removal. , - , ‘ , . . ‘

Respondent installed Dryer #2 in 1996, well after December

14, 1982. Dryer #2’isnot’a solvent’recovery dryer, and it 1~cks

a cartridge filter Admitted by Respondent in Exhibit B -

ResponseNo.. ‘17 and 19. ‘ ‘ . , “ ‘ .

Section 60 624 of Title 40 of the Code of Federal

RegulatiOns, 40 C F R 60 624, provides, ~in pertinent part, as

follows: • ‘ .‘.. ‘ . , . .

Test methods and procedures

Each’owner properàtor of’an affected
facility subject. to the provisions of - ,
§60.622(a) shalllpérform an init~a1 test to
verify that the flow rate’ of recovered’
so,lvent’.frbm the solvent recovery dryer ä.t .

the termination of the recovery cycle’ is no -.

greater. than 0.05 litersper minute.. This
test shall be conducted for a duration of no
l~ss ‘than 2’ weeks during which no less than
‘50 percent of the dryer loads, shall be ‘ . ‘

monitored for their ‘final recovered solvent
- flow rate.’ ‘ ‘ . ‘ ‘, ‘,‘ ‘ ‘ . .

Respondent did not initially test Dryer #2 to verify the

flow rate’ of recovered solv~nt after Dryer #2 was installed in

9



1996 Admitted by Respondent in Exhibit B - Response Nos 45,

46, and 47.’ , - . . , , , . ‘

In its Responsesaddressing the test for the verification of

flow rate of recdvered,solvent in Dryer #2, ‘Respondent ‘claimed

that there was no ‘test available. - Complainant ‘assumesthat

Respondent is referring to a commercially available test or a

test performed by a technical consultant for the verification of

flow rate’. ‘The remainder of Section’6O~624 of Title’4Oof the

COde of Federal Regulations-spells out the manner ‘in which’ the’

teCt is to.be’ conducted: ‘ “ .

The suggestedpaint for measuring the flow
rate of recovered.solvent is the outlet of’
the solvent-water separator. , Near the end ~f’
the recovery, cycle, the entire flow of’
‘redovered’ solvent Should be diverted to a
graduated cylinder~ As the recovered soI~ent.
collEcts in the graduated cylinder, the ‘ . ‘ .

elapsed time is monitored and recorded in .

periods of greater than or equal to 1 minute.
At the same time, the volume of solvent in
the gradu~.ted cylinder is. monitored and .

recorded to determine the volume of recovered
solvent that is collected during’ each time
period. The recovered solvent flow rate is. .

calculated by ‘dividing the volume of solvent
collected per period by the length of time
elapsed during the period and convErting the
result with appropriate factors into’ units of

- liters’per minute. The recovery cycle and,.
the monitoring ‘procedure . should .continue~ : -.

until the flow rate of solvent is less than
or equal to 0.05 literper minute. .The type ‘ ,
of articles’ cleaned and the total length of , ,

the cycle should then be recorded.: ‘

Respondent would ‘have only, required a graduated cylinder, a
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stopwatch, pen and paper, a knowledge of simple arithmetic, and

time to measure every other dryer load for two weeks Respondent

cannot hide ‘behind the excuse �hat a tEs,t was not’ available ‘since

Respondeflt’,S owners’, ope~ator’s, or employees ‘could have’ easily -

performed this simple test. •‘ ‘ , . ‘ . . ‘

For the sake of’ argumEnt., ‘even if the test was complicated,,

such circumstances would not excuse Respondent from performing

the test Respondent failed to perform the test by its own

admission and thereby violated the Act and the Code of Federal

Regulations

Thus, Respondent. violated Sections 60.622 and 60.624 of

Title 40 of, the Code of Federal Regulations and Section 9.1(d) ‘of

the Act as alleged in Counts VII and VIII of the Complaint

Summarr judgment for Counts VII ~ñd VIII of the Con~p1aint should

‘be’ awarded to’Complainant. ‘ . ‘ . . : ‘ .

CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, .Complain~nt ,

respectfully requEst the’Board to: ,

1. Enter an order’ granting summary judgment for - ‘ ,

Complainant’ and against Respondent for’ ‘Counts IV, V1 VI~, ‘and’

VIII in the’ Complaint filed ‘with -the Board’ in this ‘matter; -

2., Order that Respondent is liable for’ penalties .for

violations of the Act, the Boaid Air Pollution Regulations, and

the Code of Federal Regulations,
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3 Assess the Attorney General’s fees and costs in this

case against Respondent, and

4 Order any other relief it deems just and appropriate
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By:.. I~
IJOEL STERNSTEIN . .‘

- Assistant’ Attorney General
Environmental Bureau
188 W. Randolph St. 20th Fl.
Chicago, Illinois 60601
(312). 814--6986

Respectfully submitted,

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,
.ex rel. LISA MADIGAN ‘, ‘

Attorney General of the ‘

State of. Illinois ‘:

MATTHEWJ. DUNN, Chief ‘

Environmental Enforcement!
Asbestos Litigation Division
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CLERK~SOFFJCE

BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD OCT 1 ~ 2002

PEOPLE’ OF THE’: STATE OF ILLINOIS, ). . . STAIE OFiLUNC)~S
by JAMES E. RYAN, Attorney ‘ . ) , ‘ . , ‘ Pollution Control &ard
General of the State of-Illinois )

Complainant, . .

v. ‘ . ‘ - . ) . No. PCB O3-~t

DRAW DRAPE CLEANERS, INC., .

an Illinois corporation, . , ),

Respondent. ‘ . ‘ . ) ‘ .. ‘ . •!11,P~ ~‘~— 4.

NOTICE OF FILING

TO’: See Attached Service List : ‘

PLEASE ‘TAKE NOTICE that on October 15, 2002, the People of
the State of Illinois ,f lied with the Illinois Pollution Control
Board ‘a Complaint, true and correct ‘copies of which are attached
and hereby served upon you. ‘ .

Failure to file ‘an answer to this complaint’ within 60 days
may have severe consequences. Fai1ur~to answer,will mean that
all allegations in the complaint, will be taken as if’adrnitted for
purposes of ‘this proceeding. If you have any questions about
‘this procedure, you should contac’t the hearing officer assigned
tothiS; proceeding,, the Clerk’s Office, or an attorney.

Respectfully’ submitted,

JAMES E. RYAN ‘

- . ‘ Attorney General
State ofIllinois.

BY: ________

JOEL,J. STERNSTEIN
Assistant Attorney General
Environmental Bureau
188 W. Randolph, St., 20th Floor
Chicago, Illinois 60601
(312) , 814-6986

THIS FILING IS SUBMITTED ON RECYCLEDPAPER



SERVICE LIST

Mr. Richard Zell ‘, . . . -

Draw Dx~ape Cleaners ‘

2235 West Roscoe
Chicago, Illinois 60618 . .

Ms.. Maureen Wozniak, Esq.’
Illinois Environmental Protection Agency
1021 North Grand Avenu~ ,East
P.O. Box 19276 . ‘ . -

“springfield, Illinois 62702 ‘ :



- BEFORE.THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROLBOARD’

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, ) . -

by JAMES E. RYAN, Attorney . ) . ‘

General of the State of Illinois ) .

Complainant, . . . . ‘ ) ‘

- ‘ ‘ ‘ . ) No. P~Bo~-~(

DRAW DRAPE” CLEANERS, INC., . . ‘ . .

an I1linOi~ corporation,. ‘ ‘

Respondent. . ‘ . . . . ) .

COMPLAINT FOR CIVIL PENALTIES. . ..

Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, by JAMES E.

RYAN,, Attorney General of the State of Illinois, complains of

Respondent, DRAWDRAPE CLEANERS,’ iNC~, as follows: -.

COUNTI .. .

AIR POLLUTION ‘ - . . .‘ ‘

1. This Complaint is brought on behalf of the People

(“Complainant”) by the Attorney General on his own motion and.

upon the request ,of the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency

(“Illinois EPA”) pursuant to the terms and provisions, of Section

31 of the Illinois Environmental Protection ‘Act (“Act”), 415 ILCS

S/31(2002) .. . . ‘ . ‘‘ ‘ - ‘ ‘ . :

2. The Illinois EPA is’ an administrative~. age~c~of, the

State of Illinois, created pursuant to.. Section 4’ of the Act, 415

ILCS 5/4 (2002), and’charged, inter alia, with the’ duty of

‘enforcing the Act. ‘.,This Complaint is brought pursua~i.t to Section

31 of the Act, 415 ILCS, 5/3i (2002,) . ‘ . . . . ‘ •

CLER,~’~0i~FICE

OCT 1 5 2U02

STATE OFlLLi1~Oi~
Pollution control Eoard

V.

)
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3. ‘ At all times relevant to this Complaint, ‘DRAW DRAPE

‘CLEANERS, INC., ‘(“Respondent”) was and is an Illinois’ corporation

‘duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of -

‘Illinois and is in goo’d standing.. . .

4. ‘ ‘ At all times relevant to this. Complaint, Respondent has’

operated a...facility located at 2235-2239 West Roscoe Street,

‘Chicago, Cook County,’ Illinois, 60618 (~~facility~r) .,.

5. “Respondent Operates a’petrol’eum solvent dry cleaning

operation’ at its facility to clean drapes.

6. Respondent installed Dryer #1 at its facility in 198D

andcoritinueS to operate Dryer #1. ,.Dryer #1 is a.petroleum

‘solvent ‘dryer, but it is not ~“~Eólvent recovery dryer. Dryer #1

lacks a cartridge filter. - . .

.7.’ Respondent installed Dryer #2 at the’facility in 1996

and’contiflueS to operate Dryer,#2. Dryer #2 is a petroleum

solvent dryer, but it is not a solvent recovery dryer Dryer #2

lacks ,a cartridge filter. . , ‘ . . ‘

8. Both Dryer #1 and Dryer #2 emit volatile organic

material (“VOM”,) to the.envi.ronment. ‘ ‘ .-

9.. Sec,tion 3.315 of the Act,,415 ILCS 5/3.315 (2002),

provides the following definition: . . .. . ‘ . .

““Person” is any individual, partnership, . . ‘

‘co-partnership, firm, company, limited . ‘ ‘, .

liability company, corporation, ‘ . . . .

‘association, joint stock’::company,trust,’’ ‘ .

estate, political subdiv~1”sion,’ state . ‘ . .

agency, ‘or any other legal entity, or
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their’ legal’ representative, agent or

assigns.

10;’ Respondent is a “person”, as theterm is defined in

Section 3~315 of the,Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.315 (2002).

11. Section 3.l65pf the’Ac~, 415 ILCS 5/3.165 (2,002),

provides’ t~ie following definition: . ‘ .. ‘ .

“Contaminant” is any solid, liquid,’ or

gasEous’matte.r’, any odor,. or any’ form of -

energy, from whatever source. ., -

12. VQMis a contaminant, as that term,is defined in

:Sectjoñ 3.165 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.165 (2002).

13.: Section 3.115 of the Act, 415 ILCS :5/3.11.5 (2002),,

provides the’ following definition: ‘ ‘

“Air pollution” ~s,the presence in the
- atmosphere of one or more contaminants in

sufficient quantities and~of such
characteristics and duration as to’ be

- - injurious, to human, plant, or animal life, to
health, or to property, or to unrEasonably
‘interfere with the enjoyment, of’ life or
property. ‘ ‘ . .

14. Section 9(a). of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(a) (2002),

provides as follows: . . .

No person shall: ‘ . -.

(a) Cause’ or threaten or allow the. discharge.
or ‘emission of ‘any contaminant . into the
environment in any State so as’to cause or,
tEnd to cause air pollution in, Illinois,.
either alone or incombination with ‘ .

contaminants from other sources, so.as’to
violate ‘regulations or standards adopted by
the Board under this Act; ‘‘

15. Section 201.141 of, the. Illinois, Pollution Control Board
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(“Board”) Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill Adrn Code 201 141,

provides’ as”follows: “ ‘‘ . “ . . ‘ .

Section ‘291.141 Prohibition of Air Po11ut~.on -

- . ‘ - ‘ No person shall cause orthreaten or allow -

the discharge or emission’of any con~aminant . -

. - - into the environment in any State so..a~,
‘ either alone or in combination with - ‘ . -

contaminants from: other sources, to cause’ or
‘tend to cause air pollution in Illinois, or
so as-to vi6late the provisions of ‘this -

Chapter, or so as to’preventthè attainment, ‘ -

or maintenance’of’any applicable ambient air ‘

- quality. standard.’,~ - , - ‘ H, ‘ ‘

- :.- ‘ 16. Responaent’has emitted VOMinto the atmosphere from~’

‘‘ Dryer ~1 and Dryer #2 causing air pollution in, violat.on of. its

Federally ‘Enforceable State Operating Permit (“FESOP”), in

violation of the Act,’ and in viblatiqn of’the Board’s.

regulatio~S.’ . ‘ . ‘ . .- ~. - -.

- 17~- :RespOndeflt, by its conduct alleged herein, violated

Section 9(a) of the Act, 41~ILCS 5/9(a) (20.02), and Section

201.141,9f the Board..Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code

201.141. -, ‘ . . . ‘ . ‘ . . .

WHEREFORE, Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,

“respectfully requests “that -the ‘Board enter. a judgment ,in favOr of

complaiñant:.and against Respondent, DRAW DRAPE CLEANERS, INC., on

Count’ I: . . . ‘ , . . . .

Authorizing a hearing in ‘this ‘matter at which time

“Respondent’ will be”.required to answer the’ allegations herein;

2. ‘ Finding tb~at Respondent ‘has violated Section -9 (a) of
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the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(a) (2002)’, and,Sectlon.201.141 ‘of the Board

Air Pollution Regulation, 35 Ill’. Adm. Code 201.141;.

, 3. Ordering Respondent to cease and desist fr~m further

violations of Section 9(a) of the Act, ‘415 ILCS ‘5/9(a).(2002), and

Section 201.141 of the,Board Air Pollution Regulation, 35,111.’

Adm. Code.201.141; . : ‘ : ‘ , . “ .

4. - Assessing against, Respondent a civil penalty of Fifty

Thousan,d Dollars ($50,000.00) for each ‘violationo.f the Act and

pertinent Board Air Pollution Regulations~ and an additional

civil penalty of Ten Thousand bollars ($10,000.00) for each day

of violation; ,,,, :, , : - ‘ . ‘

5. Taxing. all costs in ,thi~ action pursuant to Section

42(f) of the Act, ‘including attorney, expert witness and

consultant fees, ‘against Respondent; and’ .

6. Granting such,other relief as the Board deems

appropriate and just.’ . ‘ - , . .

COUNTII - ‘

- 1~PLATIONOF STA~DARDSFOR PETROLETTh~SOLVENT DRY CLEANERS

1 - 14. Complainan,trealleges and incorporates by reference

herein paragraphs 1 through 14 of Count I as ‘paragraphs 1 through

13 of this ,Count II. ‘ , . .

- is; Section 218.607 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations,

35 Iii. Adm. Code 218.607, provides as follows: ‘ ,
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Standards for Petroleum Solvent Dry Cleaners -

a) The owner or operator of a petroleum -

solvent dry cleaning dryer shall either:

1) Limit emissions of VOMto the
atmosphere to an average of 3.5 -

kilograms of VOMper 100 kilograms dry
weight of articles dry’ cleaned, or

2), Install, and operate a soli)ent.
recovery,’dryer in a manner such that’ -the
dryer remains ‘closed and the recovery,
phase continues until’a.final solvent
flow rate’. .of 50 milliliters per minute -

is attained.’ . . . . -

b) ‘The own~r or operator of a petroleum
‘solvent, filtration system shall ‘ ‘ .,

‘either: , . ‘ . . -

- 1) Reduce the VON content in all
filtration.wastes to 1.0 ‘kilogram or
less per 100 kilograms dry weight of

-. articles dry cleaned, be’fore disposal,
and exposure,to the atmosphere, ‘or

2) Install and operate a cartridge
filtration system, and’ drain the filter-
cartridges in their sealed housings for
8 hours or more before their removal.

16. For,both Drye.r #1 and Dryer .#2,.Respondent has failed

to limit VOMemissions to the atmosphere to an a~verage of 3.5

kilograms of VOMper 100 kilograms dry weight articles cleaned.

17., Ne’ither Dryer #1 nbr Dry~r ‘#2 are solvent recovery

dryers’. ‘ ‘ . ‘ .

18. ‘For both Dryer #1 and Dryer #2, Respondent has failed

to reduce VOM content in all fi1tratioi~. wastes to 1.0 kilogram or

less per 100 kilograms of articles dry cleaned, before’ disposal,
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and exposu’re’to the atmosphere. . . ‘. -

19. ‘Neither’Dryer #1 nor Dryer #2 ‘haves, cartridge-

‘filtration system. “ . , , - . . ‘ . . .

20. Respondent, by its conduct as alleged herein, violated

‘-Section 9(a). of the,Act, 415 ILCS.5/9(a) (2002), ‘and Section

218.607 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations,. 35, Ill.. Adm. Code

218 .607. . -- ‘ , ‘ ‘

WHEREFORE,’Complainant, PEOPLE’ OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,

respectfully.,requests that, the Board enter ájudgmer~t in favor of

Complaiflant’and again~t:Respondent, DRAWDRAPE CLEANERS,. INC.,. on.

Count II~ , ‘ ‘ - . ‘ , ‘ . ‘ .‘

1. Authorizing a hearing in this matter at wh±ch’tirne

Respondent’Will be required to answer the-allegations herein;

2. Findii~g thatRespondent has’ violated Section ‘9(a) ‘of

the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(a) (20021,’ and Section 218.607 of the Board

Air pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 218.607;

3. ordering Respondent to cease’. and de’sist from further

violations of Section ‘9(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9 (a) (2002), and

‘Section218.6’07 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill.

.Adm. Code 218. 607; - ‘ ‘ . .‘.. . ‘-

- ‘ 4. Assessing against Respondent a civil penalty of Fifty

Thousand-Dollars ($50,000.00) for each violation of the Act and

pertinent Board Air” Pollution Regulations, and an additional

civil penalty of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for each day
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of violation; ‘ . . ‘ .

‘5.- ‘Taxing all costs in this- action pursuan,t, to Section

42(f). of the Act; including attorney, expert ‘witness and

coisultant fees, against Respondent; and’ . -

- . 6. Granting such other reliEf as the Board deems, -

‘appropriate and just. .‘ , : ,

-. ‘ ‘ COUNT III ‘ ‘- .

FAILURE TO CONDUCT ADEQUATE TESTING - ‘ ‘ ‘

1 - 14. , Complainant. realleges and incorporates by reference

herein paragraphs ~ through 14 of Count I’ as’paragraphs 1 through

14 of this Count III. ,, , :. .

15. Section 218.610 ‘of the Bba~dAir Pollution’ Regulations,

~ ~fl. .~dm. ‘Code 218.610, providesàs follOws:

Testing and Monitoring\ . ‘ . , .‘

a) Compliance with Sections 218..607(b).(2), ..

218.608 and 218.609 ‘of this Part shall be . .

determined by, visual inspection; and’ ‘

b) Compliance with Se~tions 218.607 (a) (2)
and (b) (1) of this Part shall’ be determined
by mèthods’described in EPA-450/3-82-.009
(1982) incorporated by. ref~rence in Section

“218.112 of’this Part. ‘ . . ‘ ‘ . ‘ .

16. Section 218.607 of the Board Air Pollution RegulationC,

35 Iii. -Adin. Code 218.607, sets standards for petroleum solvent

dry clEaning operations. .‘ . . .,‘ . . . .

17. Respondent has failed to visually inspectboth Dryer #1

and Dryer #2 in order to demonstrate compliance with the
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‘requirEments of Section 218.607(b) (2) of’ the’ Board Air Pollution

Regulations, 35 IlL Mm. -Code 218.607 (b) (2). -

- 18.. Respondent has failed’ to follow the ~nethods described

in EPA-450/3-82-009’ (1982) in order .to demonstrate’ compliance

with Sections 218.607(a) (2) and 218.607(b) (1) of the Board Air,

‘pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm., Code’2l8.607(a’) (2) and

(b) (1),’ for both Dryer #1 and Dryer #2.: ‘

.19. Respondent, by its, conduct as alleged’ herein,,violated

-Section 9(.a), of”the’Act,’ 415 ILCS 5/9(a) (2002), a~id Section

218.610 of the Board’Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code

218.610. ‘ , . ‘. ‘ ‘ ‘ . ‘. . ,

WHEREFORE’, Complainant, PEOPLE, OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS;

respedtful~y requeEtsthat the Board enter a judgment in favor of

Complainant and against P.espon,dent’, DRAW DRAPE CLEANERS, ‘INC., on

Count III: . . ., ‘ .

1. Authorizing ‘a hearing in this matter at which time

Respondent will be required to answer ‘the ‘allegations herein;

2. - Finding that Respondent has violated Section 9 (a) of

the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(a) (2002), and Section 218.610’ of the. Board

Air Pollution Regulations, 3~Ill. Adm; Code 218.610;

3. Ordering. Respondent .to cease and desist from further

violations of, Section 9 (a) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9 (a) (2002) , and

Section 218.610 of the Board Air Pollutioni’Regulations, 35111.

Adm. Code 218,. 610; ‘



4. Assessing against Respondent: a civil penalty of ‘Fifty

Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) for each violation of the:Act and

pertinent Board Air. Pollution,Regulations, and an additional

civil ‘penalty’ ofTen. Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for each day

of violation; . . , . ‘ ‘ -

5. “Taxing all costs in ‘this action pursuant to Section,

42 (f) ‘of the Act, ‘including attorney,, expert witness and

consultant, fees, against Respondent; and , ., . . . ‘

6. . ‘Grant±n~ süch.other relief ‘as the Board deems .

app~opria.ta and just. ‘ “ ‘ ‘ . :. ‘ , ‘

COtJNT’IV ‘ . ‘‘

CONSTRUCTIONOF AN EMISSIONS SOURCEWITHOUT A PERMIT ‘‘

- 1-12. Complainant reä.l1ege~ and incorporates by ‘reference

herein paragr~aphs 1 ‘through 12, of Count I as paragraphs 1 through

12 of this’ Count IV. . ‘ ‘ . . , ‘ .

13. ‘ Section .9, (b) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9 (b) (2002) ,

provides as follows: . . . ‘ ,‘ - ‘ - ‘

No’ person shall: .

* * . * . . .

(b) Construct, instáll~ or, operate any .

equip~nent; facility, vehicle, vessel, or
aircraft capable of causing or contributing
to air, pollution or designed’ to prevent air
pollution, of any type designated by Board
regulations,’without a,permit granted by the ‘

Agency, or in violation’of any conditions
imposed by such permit. . . ‘ . . -

14. Section 201.102 of the Illinois Pollution Control Board
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(“Board”) AIr Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm.. Code 201.102,

provides, in pertinent part, the following’ definitions:

“Emission Source”: any equipment or facility ‘ .

of a type capable of emitting specifiedair
contaminants to the atmosphere. ‘“ . - . -

“New Emission Source”: any’emission source,
the construction or modification of ,which is

.commenced ‘on or after April ‘14, 19,72.,.

“Specified .Air’ Contaminant”: any,lair .

cOntaminant as to which this.Subtitle .. , . . ‘ -

‘contains emission standards or other specific. -

- . limitations and any contaminant regulated
Illinois pursuant to Section:9.1 of the Act.

15. VOM i’s a specified ‘air contaminant’as defined by

Section 201.102 of the Board Air Pollution REgulations, 35 Ill.

Adm. Code 201.102.’ ‘ . . .

- 16, , Dryer .#2~ is a “new emission source” as ‘that term is

defined by Section 201.102 of the Board Air Pollution

Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.102 because it is capable ‘of

emitting VOM. . ‘ . . ‘ -, . .

17,.. Section 201.l42’ofthe Board Air Pollution R~gulat.ions,

3s Ill. Adrn. Code 201.142, provides as ‘follows’:’ , . ..

Section 201.142 Construction Permit Required

No person shall cause or allow the :.

construction’ of any new emission’ source or’
any new.air pollution’control equipment, or
cause or allow the modification of any ‘‘ .

existing emission source or air, pollution’
control equipment, without first obtaining a . ‘

construction permit from the Agency, except
as provided in Section 201.146. ‘ . . .

18. Respondent installed Dryer #2 at its facility without
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first obtaining.a permit from the ‘Illinois EPA.’ ‘ .

-‘ 19. - ‘ Respondent, by ‘its conduct as alleged- herein, vIolated

section 9(b) of ~hé Act, 41,5 ILCS 5/9 (b) (.2002), and Section

201.142. of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 .111. Adm. Code

201.142. ‘.. .‘ . . . . .. “ ‘ ‘- . .

WHEREFORE,Complainant. PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, .

respectfully requests that the Board’enter a.judgment in favor’of.

Complainant and against Respondent, DRAWDRAPE CLEANERS, INC., ‘on

Couflt IV: ‘. ‘ . -. . . - . .

1. ‘Authorizing a hearing’ in this matter at which time

Respondent ‘will.be required to, answer the’ allegations, herein;.

2. Finding that Respondent has violated Section 9(b) of

the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9 (b) (2002), and SEction 201.142 of the’ Board

Air pollution Regulation, ‘35 Ill. Adm. Code 2.01.142;

3.’ ‘Ordering Respondent to cease and desist from further,

violations of Section 9(b) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(b) (2002), and

Section 201.142 of the Board Air Pollution Regulation,’ 35 Ill.

Adrn. Code 201.142; . . .

4. ‘ Assessing against Respondent a civil penalty of Fifty.

.Thousalld Dollars ‘($50,000.00) for each violation of the Act and

pertinent Board Air ‘Pollution Regulations, and an additional

civil penalty of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for each day

of violation; ‘ .

5. Taxing all.costs in this action pursuant to Section,
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42 (f) of ‘the Act,’ including attorney, expert witness and,,

consultant ,fees,’ against Respondent; and’ “ - . -

6 ,‘ Granting such other relief as the. Board deems

appropriate ‘and just.. ‘ . ‘ -. . . -

CO’UN V. - ‘ ‘

OPERATIONOF AN EMISSIONS SOURCE.WITHOU~I’ A PERMIT.

1-16. Complainant ‘realleges and incorporates by reference

herein paragraphs 1 through 16 of Count ‘IV as’ paragraphs 1

‘through 16 of this Count V. , ‘ ‘ . ‘ :‘ ‘ --

17. Section 201.143 of the’ Board Air Pollution Regulations,

35 Iii. Adrn. Code,201.143, provides, in pertinent;part, as

follows: . . ‘‘ . . .. ‘ . ‘

Operating Permit for New Sources ‘ , -

No person shall cause or allow the operation
of any new emission source or new air’ , . .

pollution control, equipment. of,. a type for . -

which a construction permit is required by
- ‘ Section 201.142 without. first obtaining an ‘

operating permit from the Agency, ‘except for ‘

such testing operations as maybe authorized’
by the construction permit. . ‘ . .

18. Since 1996, Respondent has operated and continues to

operate Dryer #2. without first obtaining a permit from the

Illinois EPA. ‘ .. . ‘ . . . - ‘. . . . ‘. ..

19. Respondent, by its conduct as alleged herein, violated

Section 201.143 of the Board Air Pollution’ Regulations, 35 Ill.

Adrn. Code 201.143, and Section 9(b) of the, Act, 415 ILCS

~/9(b) (2002). . - ‘ . . . . ‘ ‘

13



WHEREFORE, Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF- ILLINOIS,’

respectfully ‘requests that the Board enter a judgment in favor of

Complainant and against Respondent, DRAW’DRAPECLEANERS, INC.., on

Count’~J: ‘ - ‘ ‘ . . ‘

1. Authorizing a hearIng in this matter at-which time -

Respondent will be required to answer the. a1leg~tions herein;

- - ‘ 2. ‘ Finding that Respondent has violated Section 9(b): ‘0f

the Act; 415 ILCS.5/9’(b) (2002?, and Section 201.143 of the Board

Ai’rpollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. -Code 201.143; , . ‘

.3. ‘ Ordering Respondent to cease anddesist.from further;

‘violations’ of. Section 9(b) of the’Act, ‘415 ILCS 5/9 (‘b) (2002), and

Section 201.14~ of, the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Iii.

Adm. Cod.e 201.143; ‘ . ‘ . . .‘ .‘ , .

4. Assessing against Respondent. a civil penalty of Fifty

Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) for each violation of the Act ‘and

pertinent Board Air Pollution Regulations, and an additional

civil penalty of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for’each day,

of violation; . . . . .

5. Taxing. all cost’s in this action pursuant ‘to’ Section

42(f) of ‘the Act, inidluding attorney, expert witness and

consultant fees, against Respondent; and , ‘ ,

6. Granting such other relief as the Board deems

appropriate and just~ . . .

‘H
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- . ‘. ‘ COUNT VI’. - . . . ‘ ‘

- VIOLATION OF FESOP CONDITION 5 . ‘‘‘

1—14. Complainant realle’ges and incorporates by reference

herein paragraphs 1 through 14 of Count’IV ás.pa’ragraphs 1’

thro~igh 14 of this Count VI - ‘ . ‘ -~ ,, . . - ‘‘

15. Respondent was granted a’ FESOP to ‘operate its emissions

sources. The FESOP-was granted On January’13, 1998 and expires

on’ January 13, 2003. . - ,‘ . . ‘ ‘ . , . ‘ ‘

16. Respondent’s FESOP,’ No 95100~05, provldes1’,in -. .

pertinent part, the ‘following condition:

* .‘ .

5. The Permittee shall comply with the
standards,-operating practices, .

inspections .and’ repair of leaks,
‘and the testing.and monitoring” . . ,

requirements for petroleum. solvent’ :

dry.cleanersas spec’if led in’35 - .‘ I

Ill. Adm. Code‘218.607 through . . .;

218.610. ‘ . .

17. By violating the Board Air Pollution Regulation~ at

SectionS’ 218.607 and 218.610, 35 Ill. Adm. Code’218.607 and

218.610, Respondent also violated Condition No. 5 of its FESOP

- No. 95100005. By violating Condition No.5’ of ‘its FESOP N~

95100005, ~espondent also violated 9(b) of the Act, 4~-5 ILC,S ‘‘

5/9(b) (2002). . ‘ ‘. . ‘ ‘ : . , . .‘ .‘ ,

WHEREFORE,Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS’,

~espectfu11y requests that the Board enter ‘a judgment in favor of

Complainant and against Respondent,’: DRAWDRAPE CLEANERS, INC., on
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Count VI: . , . . ‘ . - . . ‘‘ -

1 Authorizing a hearing in this matter at which time

Respondent will ‘be required toanswer the allegations, hérein~

‘ . -, .2., ‘Finding that Respondent has violated Condition 5 Of

- ‘ FESOP No. 95100005, and.Section 9(b) of the Act, 415 ILCS

3., Ordering Respondent to cease anddesist ,fromfurther~

vio,la~ions of Condition 5 of FESOP No. 95100005,: Section 2(b) ‘of

t:he AC.t,~’..415 ILCS 5/9(b)(2002),; - . . -. . . .. . -

4.’ Assessing. against Respondent a civil penalty of Fifty’~

Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) for each violation ‘of,the Act and -

pertinent Board Air Pollution Regulations, -and an additional’

- ‘civil penalty of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for each.day,

of violation; ‘ . . . ‘ . . -

5. Taxing all costs in this action pursuant to Section

- 42(f). of the Act, including attorney, expert witness and

consultant fees, against Respondent; and -‘. ‘ . ‘ . ‘ -

6. Granting such other relief as the Board deems -.

appropriate and just. ‘ , : . - .

- . COUNTVII ‘ ‘ . .

INSTALLATION OF A NON-SOLVENT‘RECOVERY DRYER - .

AND LACK OF A CARTRIDGE FILTER ON DRYER #2

1-10.. Complainant realieges and incorporates by reference -

herein paragraphs 1 through 10 of Count ‘I as paragraphs 1 through’

10 of’ this Count VII. . ‘, . ‘‘ .
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11. Section 9.1(d) of the Act, 415 ILCS.5/9.1(d) (2002),

provides, in,pertinent part, as follows: . .

No person shall: ,, ‘ ‘ .

(1) violate any provisions of Sections 111,
112, 165 or 173 of the Clean Air Act, as now
or hereafter amended, or federal regulations
adopted pursuant thereto; or -

(2) construct, install, modify or operate
any equipment, building, facility, source or
installation which is, subject to regulation
under Sections 111, 112, .165, or 173 of the
Clean Air Act, as now or hereafter amended,
except. in compliance with ,the requirements of
such Sections and federal regulations adopted
pursuant thereto, and no such action shall be
undertaken without a permit granted by the
Agency or in’violation of any conditions
imposed by such permit.

12. Sections 60.620 to 60.625 of Title 40, of the Code of

Federal Regulations, 40 C.F.R. 60.620-60.625, were ‘adopted

pursuant to Section 111 of the Clean Air Act.

13. Sections 60.620 to 6.~O.G25 of Title 40 of the Code of

Federal Regulations, 40 C.F.R. 60.620-60.625, set standards of

performance for petroleum dry cleaners.

14. Section 60.622 of Title 40 of the Code of Federal

Regulations, 40 C.F.R. 60.622 provides, ‘in pertinent’part, as

follows:

Standards for volatile organic compounds

(a)’, Each affected petrOleum solvent ,dry
cleaning dryer that is installed at a
petroleum dry cleaning plant after December
14, 1982, shall be a solvent recovery dryer.
The solvent recovery dryer(s) shall be ‘
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properly installed, operated and maintained.

(b) Each affected petroleum. solvent’ filter
that ‘is installed at a petroleum dry cleaning
plant after December 14, 1982, shall be a ,

cartridge filter. Cartridge filters shall be
drainEd in thEir sealed housings for at least
8 hours prior to their removal.

15. ‘ Dryer #2 was installed after December 14,.1982. It is

not a solvent recovery dryer, and it lacks a cartridge filter.

16. Respondent, by its conduct as alleged herein,’ violated’

SectiOn 60.622 of Title 40 of the.Code of Federal Regulations,.40

C.F.R. ‘ 60.622, and Section 9.1(d) of the Act, 415 ILCS

5/9.1(d) (2002). ‘ . . .

WHEREFORE,Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,

respectfully requests that the Board enter a judgment ‘in favor of

Complainant and against Respondent, DRAWDRAPE CLEANERS, INC., ‘on

Count VII:

1. Authorizing a hearing in this matter at which time

Respondent will be required to answer the allegations herein;

2. , Finding that Respondent has violated Section 60.622 of

Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations, 40 C.F.R. 60.622,

and Section 9.1(d) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9’.l(d) (2002);

3. Ordering Respondent to cease and desist from further

violations of Section 60.622 of Title 40 of the Code of Federal

RegulatiOns, 40 C.F.R. 60.622, and Section 9.1(d) of- the Act, 415

ILCS 5/9.1(d) (2002);

4. Assessing against Respondent a civil penalty of Fifty



Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) for each’ violation of ,the Act and.

pertinent ,Board Air Pollution Regulations, and an additiOnal

civil penalty of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for each day

of violation; . . . :

5. Taxing ‘all costs in. this action pursuant to Section

42(f) of the Act,’ inoluding attorney, expert witness and

consultant fees, against Respondent; and

6 Granting such other relief as the Board deems

appropriate and :ust

COUNTVIII ‘ .

FAILURE TO PERFORM~ANINITIAL FLOWRATE TEST ON DRYER #2

1 - 15. Complainant realleges and incorporates by reference

herein paragraphs 1 through 15 of Count VII as paragraphs 1’

through 16 of this Count VIII. , i . ,-

16. Section 60.624 of Title 40 of the COde of Federal

RegulationS, 40 C.F.R. 60.624, provides, in pertinent part, as

follows: . . . , . ,

Test methods and procedures

Each owner or operator of an affected
facility subject to the provisions of
§60.622(a) shall perform an initial test to’
verify that the flow rate of recovered
solvent from the solvent, recovery dryer at’
the termination of the recovery cycle is no
greater than 0.05 liters per minute. This
test shall be conducted for a duration of no
less than 2 weeks during which no less than
50 percent of.the dryer loads shall be
monitored for their. final recovered solvent
flow rate. . ‘ . . . .
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17. ‘Respondent did not initially test Dryer #2 to verify .

the flow ra~eof recOvered solvent after Dryer #2 ~as installed

in 1996. ‘ .

18. Respondent, by its conduct as alleged herein, violated

Section 60.624 of Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations, 40

C.F-.R. 60.624, and.Section 9.1(d) of the Act, 415 ILCS

5/9.1(d)(200.2). . . . . . . ,,

WHEREFORE’, Complainant,’ PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, -

respectfully requests that the Board enter a judgment in favor of

Complainant and against Respondent, DRAW DRAPE CLEANERS INC... on

Count VIII: . . ‘ . .

1. Authorizing a hearing in this matter at which time

Respondent will be required to answer the allegations herein;

2. Finding that Respondent has violated Section 60.624 of.

Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations, 40 C.F.R. 60.624,

and Section 9.1(d) of, the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9.1(d) (2002);

3. Ordering Respondent to cease and desist from further

violations of Section 60.624 of Title 40 of the Code of Federal

RegulationS, 40 C.F.R. 60.624, and Section 9.1(d) of the Act, 415

ILCS 5/9.1(d) (2002).; ‘ . .

4. Assessing against Respondent a civil penalty of Fifty

Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) for each violation of the Act and

pertinent Board Air Pollution Regulations, and an additional

civil penalty of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for each day
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of violation;

5. . Taxing all costs in this action pursuant to’ Section

42(f) of the Act, including attorney, expert witness and

consultant fees, against Respondent; and ‘ . - . . ‘

6. Granting .such other relief as ‘the Board deems ,

appropriate and just. . ‘ . .. . . . . . . ‘

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF, ILLINOIS, ‘‘

ex rei. JAI~IES E. RYAN, Attorney
General of the State of.Illinois

MATTHEWJ. DUNN, Chief’ ‘

Environmental Enforcement/
Asbestos Litigation Division’

By: U~r~
ROS~~I~~ZEAU,(C~ef
Environmental Bureau
Assistant Attorney. General

Of Counsel: . . .‘

JOEL J. STERNSTEIN . . ,

Assistant ‘Attorney General . .

‘Environmental Bureau ‘ . ‘ .

188 W. Randolph St.,
20

th Floor ‘

Chicago, Illinois 60601 ,

(312) 814-6986 , ‘ ‘

C.\Joel - Case DoCUfl~ents\DrawOr~pe\Ccmp1ain~.wpd .. ‘ .
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE ‘, .

1-, JOEL J. STERNSTEIN, an’Assistant Attorney General, ..

certify that on the 15th day of October, 2002, I caused to be.

‘,served by First.Class Mail the foregoing Complaint to the parties

named on the attached service list, by depositing same in postage

prepaid envelopes’ with the United States Postal Service located

at 100 West Randolph Street, Chicago, Illinois. 60601. .

,JOEL J.’ STEP.NSTEIN ‘

case. ~ocuments\Draw ~rape\comp1aint - notice of filing.wpd



BEFORETHE JLL)~OISPOLLUTION CONTROLBOARD

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OFlLLTh~OIS )

)

- - . Cornplaiiiant, . )

)

)

DRAW DRAPECLEAI’IERS, L~TC.,

anIllinois corporation,

Respondent;
)

)

No. PCB03-51
(Enforcement - Air)

Exhibit

.DRAW DRAPECLEANERS’ RESPONSE

TO FIRST REOUESTTO ADMIT

To: ‘ Ms. MaureenWozniak, Esq.
Illinois EnvironmentalProtectionAgency-
1021North Grand AvenueEast
Springfield,Illinois 62702’
Telephone: (217)-782-5544
Fax: (217)782-9~07

JoelJ. Sternstein .

Assistant AttorneyGeneral
Environmental Bureau
.18~W. RandolphSt.
2OthFloor
Chicago, Illinois 60601
Telephone:(3 12)-814-6986
Fax: (312) 814-2347

RespondentDrawDrapeCleaners,Inc. (collectively“Respondent”),by their attorneys,

WeissbergandAssociates,Ltd., respondto Complainant’sFirstP.equestfor AdmissiOnofPacts

on RespondentDrawDrapeCleaners,Inc..(“Requests”),andstates: ‘ , .‘ -

1. . Pleaseadmit that at all timesrelevantto the’ Complaint,Respondentwasandis an

Illinois corporationduly organizedandexistingunderthelaws oftheStateofflhinois andis in -

good standing.

RESPONSE: Admit

2. Please admit thatat all timesrelevantto theComplaint,Respondenthasoperated

the facility.

RESPONSE: Admit



3 Pleaseadmit that Respondent operates a petroleum solvent dry cleaning operation

at its facility to cleandrapes. ‘ . ‘ ‘ . ... . . ..

RESPONSE: Admit -‘ ‘ H- “ ., . ‘ . -

- 4. Pleaseadmitthat Respondent installed Dryer #1 at thefacility sometime prior to

1981 andcontinuesto operateDryer #1.

RESPONSE Admit

5. Please admit thatDryer#1 emittedVOM into the air from the time that it was

installed until the present.. . : ‘

RESPONSE: Admit . . .‘ . .‘ .. .. . .

6. , - Please’admitthatRespondentinstalledDryer #2 at thefacility in 1996and

continuesto operateDryer #2. : ‘ . ‘ ‘ . .

RESPONSE: . RespondentadmitstheyoperatedDryer #2until the]PAInspectortold

Respondent—thatDryer-#2 was..,iii violation,R~s.pondentdeniesthat.~ ..Qpe~ate,:,, - - .

‘Dryer’ #~. . . . . . ‘

7, Pleaseadmit thatDryer#2 emittedVOM afterit wasinstalleduntil sometimein

2001 or 200,2. . .

RESPONSE: Admit
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- 8. ‘ Pleaseadmit that Dryer#2 wasusedto dry cleandrapes from the time it was

- installeduntil sometimein 2001 or 2002. ,, ‘: , ‘

RESPONSE:RespondentsadmitsDryer#2 wasusedoccasionallyto dry cleandrapes

- but statesit ‘wasniainly usedto fluff materialsbeforepressing.

9, ‘ PleaseadmitthatDryer#2 hasonly beenusedfor “fluffing” drapessince

sometimein 200,1 or 2002. “ - . . ‘

RESPONSE: Admit ‘. - . . . .

10. Pleaseadmit’thatDryer#1 is a petroleumsolventdryer.

.RESPONSE:Admit ,. . . ‘

PleaseadmitthatDryer#2 is a petroleumsolventdryer.

RESPONSE:.Admit . ‘ . ..‘

12. PleaseadmitthatRespondentusesnapthaasasolventin its dry cleaning

operationsin Dryer #1. , - . ‘ . . .‘ ‘ ‘

RESPONSE: Admit ‘ .. ‘ ‘ - ‘

-J



13 PleaseadmitthatRespondentusednapthaasasolventin its dry cleaning

operationsin. Dryer#2 atthosetimeswhen it performeddry cleaningoperationsin Dryer#2

RESPONSE: Admits thatnapthawasusedoccasionallyin Dryer#2 “

14. . Pleaseadmitthatvaporsfrom Dryer#1 haveneverbeenrecovered.’

RESPONSE:- Admit.: ,. :.- . - -

15. Pleaseadmitthatva.porsfrom Dryer#2 have’neverbeenrecovered.

- RESPONSE: Admit . ‘ -

16. Pleaseadmit thatDryer#1 is not asolventrecoverydryer.

RESPONSE Admit - ‘ . ‘ . . ‘ ‘ ‘ -

17. PleaseadmitthatDryer #2, is not a solvent reco~ierydryer. -

RESPONSE: Admit ‘ . - ‘ ‘.

18. . Pleasea,dñiitthatDryer#1 lacks a cartridgefilter.

RESPONSE:Admit

19. PleaseadmitthatDryer#2 lacksa cartridgefilter.
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RESPONSE: Admit

-. 20. Pleaseadmit’thatanfl.linois EPA-inspectorwasat thefacility on January17,

2001. ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ - -

RESPONSE:Admit . ‘ ‘‘‘ .

21. Pleaseadmit thatanIllinois EPA inspectorwasat’thefacility on march29,2001.

RESPONSE: Respondentneitheradmitsnor deniesthe allegationsiii ¶ 21 dueto lack

ofknowledge. - “ . - ‘ . . ‘ -

22. Pleaseadmit that,thecurrentregIste~edagentfor DrawDrapeis RichardJ. Zell.

RESPONSE: Admit, ‘ “ ‘ . - ‘ . - -

23. Pleaseadmit thatthecurrentpresidentofDraw Drapeis StevenM. Press.

RESPONSE: ‘ “Admit ‘ . . . ‘~ ,

24. Pleaseadmitthat StevenM. Pressowns50%oftheroscoeStreetPartnership.

RESPONSE: Admit , ‘ . .‘ ‘ .

.25. , .PleaseadmitthatRichardJ. Zell owns 50%oftheRoscoeStreetpartnership.

RESPONSE: Admit ‘ , ‘. ‘ .



26. Pleaseadmit thatStevenM. Pressowns50% of the Illinois’ corporation -

“AmericanDraperyCleanersandFlameproofers,Inc.” , ‘ ‘,

RESPONSE: Admit ‘ . -‘ -

27 Pleaseadmit that RichardI Zell owns50%oftheIllinois corporation“American

DraperyCleanersandFlameproofers,Inc.” .. ‘ , ‘ - -

RESPONSE: - Admit .‘ , ‘ . :, ‘ , ‘ ‘ ‘

28. Pleaseadmitthat in June2001,Richard I. Zell of DrawDrape, Inc. received a

Violation Noticeletterfrom Illinois EPA. ‘ - ‘ ‘ ‘ . ‘ . -

RESPONSE: Admit , . ,. , , -

29..’ PleaseadmitthatsaidViolation Notice letterfromIllinoisEPA was‘numberedA

2001 00103. ‘ - . , . ‘ , ‘ , ‘

RESPONSE: Respondent‘neither admitsnor deniesthealiegationsin ¶29‘due to lack

ofknowledge. . ‘ , .‘ ‘ ‘ . . ,,‘

30. PleaseadmitthatneitherRichardJ. Zell noranyotherpersonrepresentingDraw

Drape,Inc. respondedto theJune2001 illinois EPAViolation Notice letterwithin 45 daysof

receiptoftheyiolationNoticeletter. , ,

RESPONSE: Denied ‘ ‘ .
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3l~ Pleaseadmitthat for Dryer#1 Respondenthasfailedto limit VOM emissions to

theatmosphereto an averageof 3.5 kilograms ofVOM per100 kilogramsdry weightarticles

cleaned.’ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘‘ ; , ‘ . , - - -

P~ESPONSE:Denied . , ‘ ,, ‘

32. Pleaseadmitthat for Dryer#2, Respondentfailedto limit VOM emissionsto the

atmosphereto anaverageof 3.5kilogramsofVOM per 100 kilogramsdry weightarticles . -

cleanedbetweentheinstallationofDryer #2 andthetime at whichdry cleaningoperations

ceasedin 2001or 2002. . ‘ ‘ ‘ . ‘ ‘ -

RESPONSE: Denied ‘ , ‘ - , ‘ -

- , 33. ‘Pleaseadmitthat for Dryer 3 Respondenthasfailedto reduceVOM contentin all

filtration wastesto 1.0 kilogram’or lessper1,00 kilogramsofarticlesdry cleaned,beforedisposal

andexposureto theatmosphere. , , ‘, . -, ‘ -

RESPONSE: Denied ‘. ; - .

34. Pleaseadmit thatfor Dryer #2, betweentheinstallationofDryer #2 in 1996and

thetimethatdry cleaningoperationswerestoppedin 2001 or2002, Respondenthasfailedto

reduceVOM contentin all filtration wastesto 1.0 kilogramor.lessper 100kilograms of articles

dry cleaned,beforedisposalandexposureto theatmosphere. - - , “ ,

RESPONSE:‘, Denied , . , , ‘‘ ‘ . . ‘ ‘

35. Pleaseadmit thatRespondentfailedto visually inspectDryer #1 in’ orderto

demonstratecompliancewith therequirementsof Section218,607(b)(2)oftheBoard’sAir

Pollution Regulations, 35111.Adm. Code218.607(b)(2).’ . . ‘ .
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~RESPONSE: Denied

36. Pleaseadmit thatRespondentfailedto visua~1yin~péctDryer#2 in order-to

demonstratecoippliancewith therequirementsof Section218.607(b)(2)oftheBoard’sAir, -

PollutionRegtilations,3.5 111. Adrn. Code218.607(b)(2). - ‘

- . RESPONSE:, Denied . ,. . . -

37.’ Pleaseadmit thatRespondentfailedto follow themethodsdescribedin EPA-

450/3-82-009(1982)in orderto demonstratecompliancewith Sections218,607(á)(2)and

218.607(b)(1)ofthe218.607(a)(2)and(b)(1), for Dryer#1.

RESPONSE: Denied ‘ . , , , ‘

- 38, ,Pleaseadmit thatRespondenthasfailed,to follow themethodsdescribedin EPA-

450/3-82-009(1982)in orderto demonstratecompliancewith Sections218.607(a)(2) and

218.607(b)(1) oftheboard’sAir PollutionRegulations,35 111. Adm. Code218.607(a)(2)and

(b) (1), for Dryer#2. ‘, .

RESPONSE: Denied ‘

39. - Pleaseadmit thatDryer#2 is a“new emission.source”asthattermin definedby

:Sectjon 201.102oftheBoardAir PollutionRegulations,35 Ui. Adm. Code201.102,becauseit is

capableof emittingVOM. ‘ ‘ - ‘

RESPONSE: Denied . - ‘
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40., Pleaseadmit thatRespondentinstalledDryer#2 at its facility withoutfirst

obtainingapermitfrom theillinois EPA.. . ‘ - ‘ -.

RESPONSE: Admit ~, - ‘ .

41..’ Pleaseadmitthatsince2996,Respondenthasoperatedandcontinuesto operate

Dryer#2 atits facility without apermitfromtheIllinois EPA. ‘ , ‘ , . .. -

‘RESPONSE:’ Admit ‘ ‘- , ‘‘ - . “ . ‘

42.’ Pleaseadmit thatRespondentwasgrantedaPESO?to operateits emissions

sourcesat its facility. ‘ -

RESPONSE:’ Admit ‘ -

‘43. Pleaseadmitthat saidFESOPwasgrantedon January13, 1998 andexpir:;d Oi]

January13, 2003. , . ,‘ ..

RESPONSE: , Denied ‘, , . -

44. Please admitthat Respondent’sPESO?No. 95100005,provided,in pertinentpart,

the following condition: ‘ - -

.RESPONSE: Respondent neither admitsnor denies the allegations ,i~i¶44 asthe

FESOPspeaks for itself. ‘ ‘ ‘ - ‘ , ‘ “

45. ‘ Please admit that Respondent did not performan initial test on Dryer #2 to verify

that the flow rate of recovered solvent from Dryer #2 wasno greaterthan.05 liters perminute.

RESPONSE: Admits but states there is no testavailable. ‘ ‘ .
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46. Pleaseadmit thatRespondentdid ndtperformsaidinitial test for adurationofat -

least2 weeks.-‘‘ ‘ - , ‘ , ‘

- RESPONSE: . Admitsbutstatesthereis no testavailable. - ‘ . -‘

47. PleaseadmitthatRespondentslid not performsaid initial test on Dryer #2 for at

least 50’ percent of thedryerloadsduringsaid2 weeksanddid not monitorthoseloadsfor their

final recoveredsolventflow rate. - ‘ ,. ‘ ‘ ~‘ ‘ ‘

RESPONSE: Admits but statesthereis no testavailable. -

DRAW DRAPECLEANERS,tNt., an
- ‘ . - Illinois corporation -

- ‘By: /ëJ~~.,
- , .. ‘ , ‘ Oneoftheir attorneys

Ariel Weissberg,Esq. ‘ -

JohnH. Redfield, Esq. ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ . “
MicheleMary Rocawich,Esq. ‘ ‘ .

WeissbergandAssociates,Ltd. . ‘ ‘ . -

401 S. LaSalleSt., Suite403 ‘ . .

Chicago,~ 60605 ‘ . . ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ .

312/663-0004
FAX: 312/663-1514 ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘

- ‘ ‘ CERTu~1CATEOF SERVICE .

I, MicheleRocawich,certify that on April 30, 2003, weservedthisDrawDrapeClea~ers

Responseto Requestto Admit on theabove-namedcounselsby regularmail.’ -

MicheleRocawich
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COUNTYOF COOK )

- ‘‘ ‘ ) -ss
STATEOFILLINOIS ‘, ) ‘‘

VERIFICATION

I, Richard Zell, being ‘duly sworn, state I have re,ad DRAWDRAPECLEANERS’

-‘ P.ESpONSETOFIRSTBEQUESTTO ADMiT andall thestatementsin thisResponsearetrue

- ‘ andcorrect to thebest of myknowledgeandbelief. - “ - ,‘ , , ,: ‘

-: ~ / 4~2
~ RICHi~Lt?.]DZELL ,
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BEFORE.THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION ‘CONTROL BOARD

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, ) - ., . ‘ -

Complainant, . ) ,‘

. v. - - ‘ . ‘- . - ,) No. PCB’ 03~-5I
- ‘ - ‘ ) (Enforcement - Air)

DRAWDRAPE,CLEA~ERS,INC., •- , ), ‘ .~ -‘

an Illinois corporation,, -‘ ‘ ) ‘- - - ‘

- -‘ ‘ - ), - “ E~hibitC
Respondent. - ‘ - ‘ . - )-, - . ‘‘ ‘ ‘ “ -“ “ - - —

COMPLAINANT’S FIRST REQUESTFOR ADMISSION OF FACTS .~ .

ON RESPONDENT DRAW DRAPE CLEANERS, INC.

Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF’ ILLINOIS, by LISA , -

M~\DIGAN, Attorney General of the State of Illinois, pursuant to

Section’ 101.616 of the Illinois Pollution’ Control Board’s’

Proceduzal Regulations and Illinois Supreme CourtRule 2-16, -.

hereby serves the following First Request for Admission of. Facts --

upon Respondent DRAWDRAPE CLEANERS, INC., to admit the truth of

the following facts in writing within .28 days from the date of

service hereof. - ‘ . ‘

INSTRUCTIONS AND DEFINITIONS ‘ ‘

1. With respect to any requested admission which -

Respondent refuses to answer because of a claim of privilege,
provide a statement signed by an attorney representing Respondent

sett±ng.~orth as to each: : - . - - - -

— . , a. the nature of the claim of p~ivilege; - ‘ ‘ -

-- ... b. the statute,’rule or decision which is claimed tp-
give rise to the claim of privilege;

c. all facts, relied upon’ in support of the claim of --

privilege; ,‘ . - . - ‘ . -

d. an identification of all: documents r~lated to the -

claim of privilege; ‘ -

e~ an identification of all persons having knowledge
- of any facts related to the. claim of privilege;
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and “: - - ‘ : ..

f. an. identification of all-events, tra±isactions-or.,
occurrences ‘related to the claim-of privilege.

2. ‘ ‘Forall requested-admissions which. Respondent denies or

which Respondent can neither admit, nor deny, pursuant to Illinois
supreme Court Rule 216(c), Respondent ,is required to provide
piajnti~f with a sworn statement. denying specifically the matters

‘of which admission is requested or setting forth in detail the
reasons why Respondent caru~ot truthfully admit or deny those
matters. ‘ ‘ .‘ ‘ “‘ ‘ “ ‘ ‘ ‘ -,

~Cornplaint~ shall mean the Complaint for Civil’ -

penalties filed in this case,by Plaintiff on October 15,2002.

- 4. “Pla±ntiff” shall mean-the Plaintiff ‘listed in’ ‘the

complaint and anydfhis agents, representatives, or persons who,
acted as PlaintiffTs representative. ‘ ‘ ‘: ‘ -

5. - ~Respondent~ shall ref~r’to Draw Drape Cleaners, ‘Inc.; -

and the agents, employees, representatives or any other personor -

persoflS acting for or in concert with Draw Drape Cleaners, Inc..

6. ~Facility” shall meaii the pràperty located 2235-2239

West RO~~0~Street, Chióago, Cook County, -Illinois, 60618 as’ - ‘ L
referenced ±fl, paragraph4 Count I of the complaint.. ‘ , - . - . .

7~ . “Act” shall mean’the Illinois Environmental Protection

Act, 415 ILCS 5/2. et. seq. (2002) : , -, ‘ ‘‘ . ..‘

8. “Own” means have good legal title to, hold as property,
.posesS. ‘ - “ ‘ - ‘ - -

9. “Operate” means use, exercise control over, or having

responsibilitY for the daily operation-of.’

10. ‘ “Entity” means a corporation, an’ incorporated -- -

business, or a limited liability company. ‘ ‘ - -

- 11. “Current” or “Pre~ent” means the filing date of this -

- First ‘Request for Admissions of Facts. : , - -,‘ ..

-12. “Illinois EPA” means the Illinois Environmental
protection Agency. - ‘ . . ‘ . -

13.- “Board” shall mean the Illinois Pollution Control
Board. “ ‘ - ‘ - ‘ .
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- 14. “Person” shall-include, but is not limited to,’ any~
- - ratural person; business or corporation,, whether for, prof it or
not’; firm, partnership, or other non-corporate business -

organization; charitable,’ - religious, education, governmental,-or
- other non-profit institution, foundation, body, or other

organization;’ or employee, -agent, ,or representative of any of the
foregoing. ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ - . I -- ‘

‘15,. “Or” shall ‘mean-and/or wherever appropriate.

- 16. “FES,OP” shall mean Federally Enforceable State

- -‘ ‘ Operating Permit. ‘ ‘ ‘‘ - ‘ . . -

.17. , “VOM” shall mean volatile organic material or volatile
- organic compound. . - .

l8.~ “Dryer~l”shallmean the Dryer installed at the
- facilitYPriOr to 1981 that is still in operation at the

facilitY. , ‘

19. “Dryer’44:2~l shall~nean the Dryer’±nstalled at the’ -

facilitY in 1996. ‘ , . , - -

-- - - 20. ‘All terms’ not specifically defined herein shall have
their logical ordinary meaning, unless such terms are defined in

- the Act or the regulations promulgated thereunder, in which case
- the. appropriate or regulatory definitions shall apply:

- FACTS. -

Recruest NQ., 1 . - , -

-please admit that at all times ~elevant to the Complaint,

Respondent was and is an Illinois corpOration duly organized and
~ .o,~~l.inois, ~ od

standing. ‘ ‘- -. , - , .‘.

Re~Ue5t No. 2- - , - - - -

please admit that at all times relevant to the Complaint,

Respondent has operated the facility. - -
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~e~s1~ ~Q ~

please admit that” Re~ponde±it‘operate~a petroleum solvent

dry clealling operation at its facility to clean drapes

RequeSt 1’to. 4. , - . ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘‘ ‘ ‘ -

please adrt~it;that Respondent -installed Dryer -#1 at ‘the -

facilitY sometimepriOr ‘to 1981 and, continU.es-tooperate,-Dryer.
#1. , - . , - -, - -‘ --- ‘ .

~se: -‘

Request, ~.9., 5. ‘ - . ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ - - - - -, -

please admit that Dryer #1 emi�ted VOMinto ,the air from the’
time that it was installed until the present. ‘ -- . -

ReQ1~est, ~Q. ~. ‘ ‘ - ‘ ‘ ‘- -. ‘ -‘ ‘ ‘ , - -

please admit that-Respondent instailedDryer’#2 at the
facility in 1996 and continues tooperate Dryer #2.

Reque,PtNo. - . -‘ - - ‘ , ‘ . .

please admit that Dryer #2 emitted VON, after it was

installed until,sotnetitne in, 2001 or 2002. ‘ -

Re~t_~0~ 8 , - ‘ -‘ - .‘ . ‘

please,admit that Dryer #2 Was used to dry clean drapesfrom

the time it was installed until sometime in 2001 or 2002.’ ‘.
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R~~U~StNo. 9~ -

please admit that Dryer #2 has only’be’en used for “fluffing” -

drapes since sometime in 2001 or 2002~ ‘.‘ ‘ ‘

Re~egt’ No1 - , ‘ - ‘ .

please admit that D~yer#I is a petroleurnsolven.t dryer.

~ 1~ ‘ ‘ .. ‘ ‘

- please admit that Dryer #2 is apetroleumnsolvent dryer. -

Please admit that’Respondent-uses naptha ~.s a solvent in its.
dry ‘cleaning operations in Dryer #i.

~gnSe:. ‘- .• -

~eque~St. No. 13 - ‘ ‘ - ‘ - ‘ ‘

- - Please admit that Respondent. used naptha. as a’ solvent in its
dry cleaning operations in Dryer #2 at those times when it

- performed dry clean~Lngoperations in Dryer #2. ,

~.equest Ng~. - 14 - , •- - ‘ . -

Please admit that vapors from Dryer #1 have never been
recovered. ‘ ‘ . ‘ -
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Re~U~S~t-~.Q.1$.- ‘ - ‘ - ‘ ‘ I. ‘.;_,

please admit that vapors - from Dryer #2 have never been
recovered. .‘ ‘ - -- - -‘ . ‘- , ‘1 ‘‘ - -

.p.eauest No._16 . I’ ‘ , -‘ ‘ ‘ -‘ ‘ -. -

please ~dmit that Dryer #1 is not a, solvent’ ‘recovery dryer.

‘Rea~~t No. - ‘ ‘ ‘ - -‘ ‘ ,

- please admit that ‘Dryer #2 is not a solvent recovery dryer. -

Req1~St No. ~ , - . - ‘ - -

plOase admit that Dryer #1 lacks -‘a cartridge filter. -

~equest No. ~,19 -. -~ - ‘ -‘ ‘

- Please admit that.Drye~#2 lacks a cartr±dge’fi1~er.

~onSeJ ,

RequeStY~. 20, - - - ‘ ‘ ‘,

please admit that’an IllinoisEPA inspector was at,the -

facility on January 17, 2001.’ ,

pQ~se~
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‘~eque~ ~ 2~

please admit that an Illinois EPA ±nspectbr”was at the
facility on March 29, 2001. - ‘ -~ . -

- ~jp~se: ‘- ‘ -

Recruest No. 22 ‘ ‘ -‘ ‘ - ‘

please. admit that the current registered agent for Draw
Drape is Richard J. Zell. ‘~ , “- -

~eque~t,~NO. 23 ‘ , ‘ , -

Please admit ‘that the current president of Draw Drape is
,Steven ~4. Press. ,: ‘ - - ‘‘- , ‘ .

Re,,que~t:~j9. 2& ‘ ,

please ‘admit that Steven’M. Press owns 50% of the Roscoe
Street Partnership. ‘ , ‘ - ‘

~Qn~ - - ,

Please admit that’ Richard ,J. Zell owns 50% of the Roscoe
‘Street’ Partnersh~.p., ‘ ‘ ‘ -‘ ‘ ,

Request~.Yo. 2G~ ‘ ‘, ‘ ‘ - ‘ -

please admit that Steven~M. Press owns 50% of the ‘Illinois
corporation “American Drapery Cleaners- and Flameproof ers, Inc.”

~p~nse: ‘
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Reque&t ~:to., a7 - • ‘ -‘ - , -

please admit’ that Richard J~ Zell owns 50% of the illino~.s
corporation’ “American Drapery- Cleaners and Fl,ameproofers, Inc.”

~ Np.. 28. ‘ , - - - , -. - -

Please admit that in June 2001, Richard J. Zell of Draw
Drape, Inc. received a Violation Notice letter from fllinois EPA

Re~ast No.. 29. - -, - , , ‘ . -

please admit that said Violation Notice lett~r from IllInois
EPA was .nu~ered A 2001 00103. ‘ -- ‘ , ‘ -

ReciUeSt~NP~30 - ‘ ‘, ‘ ‘ , -

Please admit that neither Richard J. Zellnor any Other
parson representing’Draw Drape; Inc. responded to’the June 2001’’
Illinois EPA Violation Notice letter within 45 days of receipt of
the , Violat ion ‘Notice letter.- ‘ ,

~se: ,, - , -‘

31 - ,‘ ‘ - - ,

- please admit- that for Dryer #1 Respondenthas’ failed to
limit VOM emi~sions,to the atmosphere to an average of 3.5
kilograms of VOM per 100, kilograms dry weight articles cleaned.

Request.~TO..,..32~ -‘ ‘ , ‘ ‘ , ,
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-‘ please admit that for Dryér#2, Respondentfailed to limit
VON emissions to the atmosphere to ‘an averageof 3.5 kilograms of
VOM per 100 kilograms dry weight. articles cleaned between the

- installation of Dryer #2 and the time at which dry cleaning
.opératiOfls ceasedin’2001 or 2002. “ ‘ , ‘

- ~jp~e: - , - ‘ - - ‘-‘

~ ~ , l~To. - ‘ , -. , -

- ‘Please admit that for Dryer #1 Respondent has failed to
reduce VON content in all filtration wastes to 1.0 kilogram or
less per 100 kilograms of articles dry cleaned, before disposal
and exposure to the atmosphere. , ‘ ‘ ‘

Regue~ No.,, ,- ‘ , ‘.‘ - ‘ ‘-

Plea-seadmit that for ‘Dryer #2, between the installation of
Dryer #2 in 1996 and the time that ‘dry cleaning operations were
stopped in 2001 or 2002, Respondent has failed to reduce VON ‘ -

content, in all filtration wastes to 1.0 kilogram or less per 100
‘kilograms of articles dry cleaned, before disposal and exposure
to the ,atmospher~.‘ - -‘ ‘ - ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘

~eques~ N,o’.,. ~ - - - ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ -

Pleaseadmit ‘that Respondent failed to visually inspect

-Dryer #1 in order to demonstratecompliance with the requirements
of Section 218.607(b)(2)’of the Board’s Air Pollution
Regulations, 35 Iii. Admu, Code 218.607(b) (2).

Re~Uea,t$o. 36 - -

please admit that Respondent failed to visually inspect
Dryer #2 in order to demonstrate’ compliance with the requiremetits
of Section 218~.G07(b)(2) of the Board’s Air Pollution
RegulationS’, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 218.607(b) (2).
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- Req~e~t~

please’ admit that Respondent failed, to ‘follow the methods
described in EPA-450/3-82-009 (1982) in order to demonstrate’
‘compliance, with’ Sections 218.607(a) (2) and 218.607(b) (1) of the
Board’s Air Pollution Regulations, 35 111. Adm. Code
218.607 (a,’) (2) and (b) (1); for Dryer #1. - ‘ ‘ , -

~e~e~t No~,,~8 , , , ‘ ‘, - , ‘ ‘ -

please admit that Respondent has’f ailed to follow the
‘methods described in EPA-450/3-82-009- (1982) in order to
demonstratecompliance with Sections 218.607(a) (.2) and ‘

218.607 (b) (1) of the Board’s Air Poliution Re~u1ati’ons, 35’ Iii.
Adm. Code 218.607(a)’(2) and (b)(1),’for Dryer #2.’

RequeSt ,No. 39. ‘ , , - - , ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘- ‘ ‘

please admit that Dryer #2 is a “new em±ssionsource” as
that term is defined by ‘Section 201.102 of-the’ Board Air -

pc1l,~.tion Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.102, because it is
capable of emitting VOM. - ‘ ,‘ ‘

~egi~estYP,~ 4Q ‘, , - . ‘ - ‘ - ‘ - ,

Please admit,that Respondent installed Dryer #2 at its
facility without’ first obtaining a permit from,the Illinois EPA.

P.eq,ues,t ~‘To~,4~- ‘ - -

please admit that, since 1996, Respondent has operated and
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continues -to Operate Dryer #2. ‘at its facility without a permit
from the Illinois EPA

- ~T~ES~ ~ ‘ -. ‘ ‘ ‘ - , , ‘ ‘

- - please admit that Respondentwas granted a FESOP to operate
its. emissions sources at~its facility. -‘

~onse:’ -, - .“

Rec~ueStNo. 43 ‘ - , ‘- , ‘- ‘ - ‘ ‘

- , please admit that said FESOP was granted on January 13, 1998’
and ,expired’on January 13, 2003. -~ ‘ , - , - ‘

Req1.~S~,No. 4 ‘ - - ‘ ‘ -

- please admit that, Respondent’s FESOP No. 95100005, provided,
i~i pertinent part, the’ following condition: ‘ -

- 5. The Permittee shall comply with the
- ‘ , standards, operating’practices, ,

- inspections and repair of leaks,
and ,the testing and monitoring
requirements for petroleum solvent
dry cleaners’ as specified in 35 -

Ill. Adm. Code 218.607 through
218.610. - ‘

Reque~t’N~O~4~‘,‘ , ‘ ‘

Please admit that Respondent did not perform an initial
test on Dryer *2 tO verify tha� the flow rate of recovered
solvent from Dryer *2 was no greater than .05 liters per

‘minute. ‘ ,‘ ,, ‘ ‘ -
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RequeSt~O.. 46~

‘please admit that Respondentdid nOt perform said,

initial test’ for a duration of at least 2 wee-ks.
RegpO~J. ‘ - ‘ ‘ - ‘ -

~est~JO.,4j. - ‘ - - -‘ ‘- ‘,

please admit-that’ Respondentdid’rio-t perform said
initial test on Dryer #2 for at’ least 50 perôent of the-
dryer loads during said 2 weeks and did not monitor thosà
loads for -their, final recovered-solvent; flow “rate.

Respectfully submitted, -

- - PEOPtJE OF THE ‘STATE OF ILLINOIS,
- ,ex rel. LISA t~IADIGAN’,

- - . Attorney General of the
-‘ ,, State of Illinois ,, ‘ ~‘ -

MATTHEW’J. DUNN, Chief
- Environmental Enforcement!

.Asbestos Litigation Division

-, - ROSEMARIE CAZEAU, Chief
- ‘• Environmental Bureau’

- Assistant Attorney General

- ‘ By:’’._-
- ‘ ‘ ‘ JOEL J. STERNSTEIN -

- , Assistant Attorney General
Environmental Bureau

- 188 W’-,Randolph, St. 20th Fl.
Chicago, Illinois 60601

- - ‘(312) ‘83~4-6986 , -

,H~\comrnofl\EflVit0flmefl~al’J0EL\CaSeDOCUTflerttS\DTaW Drape\Discovery\request-admitl.wpd -
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- - “ CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE ‘-‘ ‘- -

I, JOEL J. S’rERNsTEnT; - an Assistant Attorney - General, -

certify that on the 11th day of April, 2003, I causedto be

served by First Class Nail the foregoing COMPLAINANT”S,FIRST

-REQUEST FOR ADMISsION’ OF FACTS ON RESPONDENT DRAW~RAPE CLEANERS,

i~c.,’ to the ‘parties’ named on the attached service list, by

depositing same,in postage prepaid envelopes with the United

States Postal Service located at 100 West Randolph Street,

Chicago, Illinois 60601. -‘ ‘ , - -

~b_-~ ~-‘

JOEL J. STERNSTEIN



SERVIC~’I.~IST

Ms.;MaUreefl Wozniak,’ Esq. -, - ‘ -‘ - -

Illinois Environmental PrOtection Agency’
1021 North Grand Avenue East
p.0.-Box 19276 . , - - - - ,

Springfield, Illinois 62702.’ .. - ,‘

Ms. Michele Rocawich, Esq. , ,

weissberg -and Associates, Ltd. -; -

401 S. LaSalle Street, Suite 403, ‘

Chicago, Illinois 60605 - -



-‘ ,, -‘ : - - CERTIFICATE b~sE~vib~ - ‘ .

I, JOELJ. STERNSTEIN, -an Assistant Attorney General, do

-, certify that I, caused, to be mailed this
27

th day-of’ June,.2003,

- - the foregoing Plaintiff’s Motion for Partial summary-Judgmentby

- f±rst-class’ma±lin a postageprepaidenvelope and depositing

same with the United ‘States Postal Service located’in Chicago,

Illinbis. : . ‘ . ,, ‘

“H’ ~

JOEL L STERNSTEIN



ILLINOIS POLLUTIONCONTROLBOARD
- August2l,’2003

PEOPLEOFTHE STATE OF lLL~NOIS )

)

Complainant, ) - -

) -

- , ) PCBO3-5l
- ‘ ,. , , ‘ ‘ - ) - (Enforcement — Air)

DRAWDRAPE CLEANERS,INC., ‘ )

H) -

Respondent. , ,‘ ‘ )

ORDEROF THE BOARD (byM.E. Tristano):

This matter is before the Board on a motion for partial summaryjudgment filed by the
People of theState of Illinois (People) on June27, 2003, against Draw Drape Cleaners, Inc.,
(respondent). The People seek partialsummaryjudgment on four of eightcountsin its 2002
complaint allegingair pollution, operating andpermitviolationsoftheEnvironmentalProtection
Act (Act) andthe Board’s air rules. Respondent runsadry cleaningfacility in Chicago, Cook
County. -‘ -

-‘ On July 18, 2003’,respondentfiled a responsein opposition to themotion, assertingthat
various mitigating circumstances dictate a fmding in its favor-. On July 31, 2003,thePeoplefiled

‘a reply, accompanied by a motion for leave to file, which is grantedby the Board. -

The Peopleseeksummaryjudgment against respondenton four ofthe eight counts:
countIV, construction ofan emissionssourcewithout a permit; count V, áperation of an
emissions source without a permit;countVII, installation ofanon-solventrecoverydryerand
lack of a cartridgefilter; and count Vifi, failure to perform an initial flow rate test.

Forthereasonsoutlinedbelow,theBoardgrantsthe Peoplepartial summaryjudgmenton
the complamt by finding that respondentsviolated theAct andBoard’s rules as outhned in

counts IV, V, VII, andcountVIII The partiesaredirected to proceed expeditiously to a hearmg
on remedyandpenalty for thesecounts,andon all issuesfor theremainderOfthecontested
countsin thecomplaint. Respondentsarefree to presentanymitigatingevidenceor arguments
astheymay relateto theBoard’sconsiderationof thefactOrscontainedin Section33(c)and
42(h) oftheAct at hearing.

- PROCEDURAL HISTORY

On October 15, 2002,thePeoplefiled an eight-count complaint againstrespondent. The
complainantallegedthat respoi-~dentviolatedvarious provisions ofthe Act, the Board’s air
pollution regulations, andits FederallyEnforceableStateOperatingPermit(FESOP).The
complaintinvolvesapetroleumsolventdry cleaningfacility operatedby respondentat2235-
2239WestRoscoeStreet,Chicago,Cook County. - - ,



2.

‘ On December17, 2Q02,’ the respondent filed an answerto the complaint arid offered five
affirmative defenses.On January16, 2003,the complainant filed a motion to strike or dismiss

- respondent’s affirmative defenses.On February20, 2003,theBoard granted the complainant’s
motionto strikerespondent’saffirmativedefensesfor thereasonsoutlinedin that order. Peopi~
v. Draw DrapeCleaners,Inc., PCB03-51 (Feb.20, 2003). ‘ ‘ -- ‘ -

On April 11, 2003,the Peopleservedrespondentwith writtendiscovery, including a
requestfor admissionoffacts. Respondentsubsequentlyservedthe Peoplewith responsesto
writtendiscoveryincluding its responseto therequestto admit. (thePeoplefiled the,responses
asExhibit B to its motionfor summaryjudgment.) In theresponsesto the requestto admit,
respondentadmitted that it failed to securetherequired constructionand operating pemiits for
dryer#2. Respondentadmittedthat dryer #2 is not a solvent recovery dryerandlacks a cartridge
filter. Finally, respondentadmittedthat it failed to perform an initial flow rateteston dryer#2.

- ‘ ‘ STANDARD OF DECISION -‘ ‘ - ‘ - ‘‘ ‘ -‘

Summaryjudgment is appropriate when thepleadings,depositions,admissionson file,
andaffidavits disclosethat there is no genuineissueasto any material fact andthemoving party.
is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. Dowd & Dowd, Ltd. v. Gleason,181 111. 2d 460, 483, -

69’3 N.E. 2d 358, 370 (1998). In ruling on a motion for summaryjudgment, the Board “must -

consider the pleadings, depositions, andaffidavits strictly against themovant and in favor ofthe
opposingpart.” Id. -‘ - ‘ - -

- Summaryjudgment“is a drasticmeansofdisposingoflitigation,” andtherefore it should
begrantedonly when themovant’s right to thereliefis clear andfree from doubt.” Id, citing
Purtill v. Hess,111 Ill. 2d 199,240,489N.E.2d 867,871 (1986). However,a partyopposinga
motionfor summaryjudgmentmaynotreston its pleadings,butmust“presentafactualbasis
whichwould arguablyentitle [it] to ajudgment.” Gauthierv. Westfall, 266III. App. 3d 213,
219,639N.E.2d994,999 (2dDist. 199.4). ‘ - -

- ‘ Count IV: Construction Without Permit -

Count IV ofthecomplaint alleges-that respondent constructed an emissions source
without apermit in violation ofSection9(b) ofthe Act andSection201.142oftheBoard’s air

- pollution regulations. - ‘ ‘ - -

Section,9(b) oftheAct providesasfollows: ‘ - ‘ -

Nopersonshall: - - ‘ -

(b) Construct,install, or operateanyequipment,facility, vehicle,
‘vessel,or aircraftcapableorcontributingto air pollutionor
designedto preventair pollution,of anytypedesignatedbyBoard
regulations,without apermitgrantedby theAgency,or in
violation of anyconditionsimposedby suchpermit.
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Section 20 1.142 of the Board’s Air PollutionRegulationsprovidesasfollows:

No personshallcauseor allowthe constructionofanynew emission
source or any new air pollution control equipment, or causeor allow the
modificationofanyexistingemissionsourceorair pollutioncontrol

- equipment,without first obtaininga constructionpermitfrom theAgency,
exceptasprovidedin Section201.146. -

The Peoplearguethatrespondentadmittedit installeddryer#2 at its facilit~’withoutfirst
obtainingapermitfrom theAgency. Mot. Lx. Resp.at40. Thus,complainantarguesthat
respondentviolatedSection9(b) oftheAct andSection201.142oftheBoard’sAir Pollution

- Regulationsandsummaryjudgmentshouldbeawardedto complainant. -

In response,Draw Drapearguesthat it installeddryer#1 in the1960sandoperatedit in
compliancewith theAct until it wasdamagedin 1994. -Draw Drapesassertsthat theAct

- “grandfatheredin” dryer#1, sothat it didnotneedapermit. Dueto afire at theplant andforced
to rebuild its plant, respondentobtainedapermitto rebuild. To resumeoperations,respondent

- arguesit neededadryerwith at leasta 100 lb capàcity to replacedryer#1. The respondent
‘contendsthatin 1996whentheplantwasrebuilt, arecoverydryerwasnotavailable. As aresult,
respondentpurchasedandinstalleddryer#2. Becausethedryerswereidenticalanddryer#1 was
destroyedin the~fire and it hadobtainedapermitto rebuild,respondentarguesit believedit was
operatingdryer#2 jn compliancewith theAct andthatits operatingpermitcovereddryer#2. As
soonasa. recoverydryerbecameavailablein thepropersize,DrawDrapesassertsit orderedand
installedtherecoverydryer. Resp.at 1, 3. ‘ - - ‘ -

Inits reply, thePeoplecontendthatrespondentcannothidebehindits assertionthatit
believeddryer#2,wasconstructedin compliancewith theAct. ThePeoplearguethat“a
defendantis presumedto knowthelaw andthatignoranceofthelaw isno excuse.”Peoplev.
Acosta,331 Ill. App.3d I, 6; 768 N.E.2d 746,751 (2dDist. 2001);Peoplev. Terneus,239 Iii.
App.3d669,672; 607N.E.2d568’, 570 (4thDist. 1992). -

TheBoardgrantssummaryjudgmentto complainanton countIV ofthecomplaint.
RespOndentadmitsthatit failedto securetherequiredconstructionpermitfor dryer#2-atits
facility. ‘RespondenttherebyviolatedSection9(b) oftheAct andSection210.142ofthe -

Board’s air pollutionregulations.Respondent’sargumentsaboutgood faith ormistaken
understandingarenot anappropriatedefenseto liability. But respondentis freeto raisethemat
hearingasto remedyandpenaltyissues,astheymayrelateto theBoard’sconsiderationof
factorsof33(c)or42(h) oftheAct. - -

-‘ - ‘ Count V: Operation Without Permit

Count V -of the complaint alleges that respondent operated an emissions source without a
permit in violation of Section9(b) oftheAct andSection201.143ofthe Board’s Air Pollution
Regulations. - ‘
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Section201.143ofthe Board’sAir PollutionRegulationsprovides: - ‘ ‘ -

No person shall causeor allow the operation ofanynew emissionsource
or new air pollution control equipment ofa type for which a construction

- permit is required by Section201-.142 without first obtaining an operating -

permit form the Agency,exceptfor suchtestingoperations asmaybe
- authorized by the constructionpermit. - ‘ - - -

The Peoplearguethat respondentadmitted it operateddryer #2 without first obtaining a
permit from the Agency. Mbt.at 7,Ex.B Resp.41. Thus, thePeoplearguesthat respondent
violated Section 9(b)oftheAct and Section201.143oftheBoard’s Air Pollution Regulations
andsummaryjudgment should be awarded. Id. . -

Respondentarguesthat from the time it installed andbeganoperating dryer #2, it -

operatedit mainlyto fluff draperies. Draw Drape contendsthat the processof fluffing doesnot
emit VOMs into the environment. Respondentarguesthat during the time-it operateddryer #2, it
has emitted minimal VOMs into thô environment. In support of this claim, Draw Drape citesto
averification that RichardZell of Draw Drapesprovided with respondent’s answersto the
complaint attestingto thesefacts: - -

- ‘ 1) Respondenthashad a Federally EnforceableStateOperating Permit (FESOP)
sinceapermit was required; 2) Respondenthasalwaysoperated its plant below
the emissionsallowed under its FESOPpermit; and 3)Respondentwould have to
emit an additional 1,000 gallonsper yearto reach the emissionsallowed under its

-‘ : FESOP. Resp,. at 3. - - ‘ - . ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ -

Draw Drape arguesthat Mr. Zell’s statements‘constitute evidentiaryfacts andthat
complainant hasno proved evidentiary factsto controvert them. Respondentfurther arguesthat
unswornandunverified statementscannotbe consideredon a motion for summaryjudgment. -

Rotzoll v. OverheardDoor Corp., 289 Ill. App.3d 410, 161-62,681 N.E.2d 156 (4th Dist. 1997),
Westv. Deere& Co.,201 111. App.3d 891, 900, 559N.E.2d 511(2ndDist. 1990).
Unsubstantiatedhearsaystatementscannot be consideredin ruling on a motion for summary
judgment. - Laja v. AT &T, 283 Ill. App.3d 126, 136, ,699N.E.2d645 (1stDist. 1996). As such,
the respondentarguesthat theBoard cannotconsider theunsworn and unverified statementsof

- complainant’s counselcontained in its motion for summaryjudgment.Resp. at 3-4.

- In its reply, thePeo~leagain contendthat respondentcannothidebehind its assertionthat
it believeddryer #2 was operating in compliancewith theAct. The Peoplestatethat “a
defendant is presumedto know the law andthat ignoranceofthe law is no excuse.” Peoplev.
~ 331 Ill. App.3d I, 6; 768 N.E.2d 746,751 (2dDist 2001);Peoplev. Temeus,239 Ill.
App.3d 669, 672 N.E.2d 568,570(4thDist. 1992). Reply at 3.

Also, the Peoplecontendthat its motion did not contain unswomandunverified
statements,sinceit cited to respondent’s swornanswers to interrogatories. The Peopleassertthat
Supreme Court Rule 2 13(h) states“answers to interrogatories maybe usedin evidenceto the
sameextentasadiscoverydeposition.” Replyat2. ,A discoverydeposition,accordingto -
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Supreme Court Rule 2l2(a)(4) maybe used“for any purposefor which an affidavit maybe
,used.” The People,therefore, argue that an answerto, an interrogatory maybe treated as an
affidavit for purposesof a motion for summaryjudgment. Komater v. Kenton Court Ass, 15111.

- App. 3d 632, 637; 1502N.E. 2d 1295, 1298(2d Dist. 1986). Reply at 2.

- , The Board finds that thecomplainant hasproven that it is entitled to sumnmaryjudgnient
on Count V. Mr. Zell himselfhasverified the facts on which the Peoplerely asproofof
violation: Draw Drape’s responseto the first requestto admit facts. Mot. Ex. B at p. 12. Again,
Draw Drape is free to introduce evidenceand argumentsat hearing in mitigation ofthe violation
as allowedby Sections33 (c) and42(h) ofthe Act.

Count VII: Failure to Install Compliant Dryer

- Count VII ofthe complaint allegesthat respondentdid not install a solventrecoverydryer
with a cartridge filter asrequired by Section60.622ofTitle 40ofthe CodeofFederal
RegulationsandSection9.1(d)ofthe Act; , - -

- - Section60.622ofTitle- 40oftheCodeofFederal Regulationsprovides:

(a) ‘ ~Eachaffectedpetroleum solventdry cleaningdryer that is installed
at a petroleum dry cleaningplant after December14, 1982, shall be
a solventrecovery dryer. The solventrecoverydryer(s) shall be

- properly installed,,operatedandmaintained.

(b) Each affected-petroleumsolvent filter that is installed at a
petroleum dry cleaningplant after December14, 1982, shall be a
cartridge filter. Cartridge filters shall be drained in their sealed
housingsfor at least 8 hours prior to their removal.

Section9.1(d)oftheAct provides: -

No personshall: -

(1) violate anyprovisions ofSections111, 112, 165 or 173 of
the Clean Air Act, asnow or hereafter amended,or federal’ -

- regulations adoptedpursuant thereto; or

(2) construct, install, modif~’or operate an equipment,
building, facility, sourceor installation which is subjectto
regulation under Sections111, 112, 165 or 173 of the
Clean Air Act, asno or hereafter amended,exceptin
compliancewith the requirementsof suchSectionsand
federal regulations adoptedpursuant thereto, andno such
action shall be undertaken without a permit grantedby the
Agencyor in violation ofany conditions imposedby such
permit. ‘ ‘ - -
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The Peopleargue that respondentadmitted’that dryer #2 is not a solventrecoverydryer
andthatit lacks a cartridge filter as admitted in Exhibit B — ResponseNo. 17, 19 (Mot. at 7-8,
Ex.B Resp.17 and 19). The Peopleconcludethat respondentviolated Section60.622ofTitle 40
ofthe CodeofFederalRegulationsand Section9.1(d)ofthe Act andthat summaryjudgment -‘

should be awarded. - ‘ - - - ‘ - -

Draw Drape arguesthat a recovery dryer with a cartridge filter oftheproper sizeto
replacethe dryer destroyedby the fire wasnot available in 1996. Wheiia recoverydryer in the -

proper sizebeCameavailable in May 2002, respondentstatesit immediately ordered anew
recoverydryer. Respondentassertsthemanufactureracceptedrespondent’sorder for thenew
recoverydryer in May 2002 anddelivered thenew dryer in late September2002. Draw Drape
relatesthat it obtainedapermit and installed andbeganoperation ofthenewdryer in May 2003.
Resp.at 4. ‘ - ‘ - - ‘ -

- In its reply, thePeoplecontend,that the unavailabilityofa proper sizeddryer doesnot
excuserespondentfrom complying with the law. Comp. Resp.at. 3.

- The Board grantssummaryjudgment to the Peopleon Count VII ofthe complaint.
Respondentadmittedthat it dryer #2 is not a solvent recoverydryer andlacks a cartridge filter. -

Respondentthereby violated Section60.622ofTitle 40ofthe CodeofFederalRegulationsand
Section9.1(d)oftheAct. Respondentmayoffer evidenceand argument relevant to SectiOns
3 3(c) and42(h) ofthe Act about equipmentavailability at hearing. -

- ‘ - Count VIII: Failure to’ Perform Initial EmissionsTest

Count Vifi of the complaint alleges that respondentdid notperformthe initial test
required by Section60.624ofTitle 40 ofthe CodeofFederal RegulationsandSection9.1(d)of
the Act. Section60.624provides: ‘ , ‘ ‘ -

Each owner or operator of an affected facility subject to provisions of Section
60.622(a)shall performaninitial test to verify that the flow rate ofrecovered
solvent from the solvent recoverydryer at the termination ofthe recovery cycleis
no greater than 0.05 liters per minute. This testshallbeconductedfor aduration
ofno lessthan2 weeksduringwhich no lessthan50 percent ofthe dryerloads
shall be monitored for their final recOvered solvent flow rate.-

The Peoplearguethat respondentadmitted it did not initially test dryer#2 to verify the
flow rate ofrecoveredsolvent after dryer#2 wasinstalled in 1996. Mot. at 9-11; Ex, B Resp.45,
46, and47. Thus, the Peopleconcludethat the respondentviolatedSection60.624of Title 40 of
the Codeof FederalRegulationsand Section9.1(d)ofthe Act and summaryjudgmentshould be
awarded. ‘ - “- - - - - ‘

-Draw Drapenotesit did not perform an emissions test when it beganoperating the new
dryer becauseno commercialemissionstestwasavailable at thetime. In addition,respondent
contendsit hashadaFESOPsinceapermitwasrequiredandthat it hasalways operatedits plant
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below the emissionsallowed under its FESOPpermit. Respondentestimatesthat, it would have
to emit additional 1,000gallons per year to reachthe emissionsallowed under its FESOPto be in
violation. Respondentarguesthat it verified this fact and complainant did not controvert this
properly supported material fact. Resp. at 4. -

In thereply, the Peoplecontendthat respondentcould haveperformed thetestoutlined in
Section60.624with a graduated cylinder, a,stopwatch,pen andpaper, knowledgeofsimple
arithmetic, andtime to measureevery other dryer load for two weeks. Respondent’spossession
ofa FESOP,thePeoplestate, doesnot excusefailure to perform the test. The Peopleargue that
respondentfailed to perform the testby its own admissionand thereby violated the Act andthe

Code ofFederal Regulation. Reply at 4. ‘ -‘

The Board grantssummaryjudgmentto thePeopleon count VIII of the complaint.
Respondentadmitted that it did not initially testdryer #2 to verify theflow rate ofrecovered
solventafter thedryer was installed in 1996. Respondent’ argument that it could not perform the
testbecauseno commercialemissionstest was available at the time doesnot bar a finding of
liability. As the Peoplecontend,respondentcould havetestedin other ways. Respondent
violated Section60.624ofTitle 40of theCodeofFederalRegulationsandSection9.1(d)ofthe
Act. Respondentmaymake anyappropriate argumentsunder Sections33(c) and42(h) during
thenextphaseof this proceeding. - ‘ -

- ‘ CONCLUSION

- The Board grants the People’smotion-for partialsummaryjudgment on the complaint by
finding that respondentsviolated theAct and Board’s rules as outlined in counts IV, V, VII, and’
count Vifi. The parties aredirected to proceedexpeditiouslyto hearing on the remainder of the
contestedcountsof the complaint, aswell ason remedy andpenalty issues.

IT IS SO ORDERED. ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘

I, Dorothy M. Gunn, Clerk ofthe Illinois Pollution Control Board, certify that theBoard
adopted theaboveorder on August 21,2003,by a voteof 7-0.

DorothyM. Gunn, Clerk
Illinois Pollution Control Board
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To:. Ms. MaureenWozniak,Esq.
Illinois EnvironmentalProtectionAgency
1021NorthGrandAvenueEast
Springfield,Illinois 62702
Telephone:(217)-782-5544
Fax: (217)782-9807

JoelJ. Sternstein

AssistantAttorneyGeneral•
EnvironmentalBureau
188 W. Randolph St.

20
th Floor

Chicago,Illinois 60601
Telephone:(312)-814-6986
Fax: (312)814-2347

RespondentDrawDrapeCleaners,Inc. (collectively“Respondent”),by theirattorneys,

WeisàbergandAssociates,Ltd., respondto Complainant’sFirst Requestfor Productionof

Documents,ObjectsandTangibleThingsonRespondentDrawDrapeCleaners,Inc.

(“ProductionRequest”),and states:

1. PleaseIdentif~’:

(a) Theindividual(s)answeringtheseinterrogatoriesonbehalfofRespondent,

including his or herrelationshipto Respondent,and howlong heor shehasbeen

associatedwith Respondent.

ANSWER:

RichardZell, VicePresidentDrawDrapes

2239WestRoscoe

Chicago,IL 60618

PEOPLE OF THE STATEOF ILLIr~TOIS .

Complainant, ).

)

DRAW DRAPECLEANERS, ll’~C,, )

an Illinois corporation, . .~ )

)

Respondent.. )•

No. PCB03-51
(Enforcement - Air)

• DRAW DRAPESRESPONSE
TO

FIRST OF SET OF INTERROGATOR~ES



(b), Eachpersonwho providedinformationorwho otherwiseconsulted,participated

orassistedin connectionwith providinganswersto theseinterrogatories,the -

natureof anysuchconsultationorassistance,whethertheinformationwasbased

onpersonalknowledge,andif not onthebasisofpersonalknowledge,onwhat

basis, it wasprovided. ‘ ‘ -

ANSWER: - ., ‘ -

MicheleRocawich,Esq. - , - -

Weissberg & Associates, Ltd.’

401 S LaSalleStreet,Suite,402 - - ‘ .‘

Chicago,IL 60-605 .‘ ‘ - -. ‘

OneoftheAttorneysfor DrawDrapes

(c) For eachpersonidentifiedin Axiswer to InterrogatoriesNo. 1(b), specifythe

particularinterrogátoriesto whicheachsuchpersoncontributed.

ANSWER: All interrogatories - ‘ -

2. Identify thename,address,phonenumber,occupation,andresponsibilitiesofany

andall personshavingknowledgeofthe operationsatthefacility and/orthe factspertainingto

any possiblereleaseofVOM orotherpollutantsand’any of thefactsallegedin theComplaint

filed in Pepplev. DrawDrapeCleaners.Inc., _PCB‘03-51. Includeanyandall personsthat

Respondentintendsto call aswitne’ssesat hearing,including theirrelationship,if any, to

Responde~it. ‘ -

• • ANSWER:- , ‘

Richard.Zell,VicePresidentDrawDrape’s ‘

2239WestRoscoe ‘ -

Chicago, IL 60618

Uyless Thomas
Employee,DrawDrapes
826 E’ast53rd Street •

Chicago, IL 60615



3. Pursuantto illinois SupremeCourtRule213(f),with respectto anyhearing

witnesses,pleasestatethefollowing: - -

(a) Thename,addressandemployerofeachwitness.

ANSWER: - To‘be determined

(b) A summaryoftherelevantfactswithin t1~eknowledgeo,forwhich saidwitness

- • , will testify to. ‘ •‘ -• ‘ ‘

ANSWER: To bedetermined ‘ -

(c) • A listing ofany d cumentsor‘photographswhich anysuchwitnesshasrelied

upon,will useorwhich may introduceinto evidencein connectionwith the

testimonyofsaidwitness. ‘ ‘

ANSWER: To bedetermined

• 4. , Furnishtheidentityand addressesofindependent~xpertwitnesseswho will

‘testify attrial forRespondent,togetherwith thesubjectmatteronwhich eachindependentexpert

Witnessis expectedto testify; theconclusionsandopinionsof eachindependentexpertwitness

andthebasestherefore;and thequalificationsofeachindependentexpertwitnessanda copyof

all reportsofsuchwitnesses. ‘

ANSWER: To bedetermined ‘

5. Furnishtheidentity andaddressesofcontrolledexpertwitnesseswho alsowill

testify for plaintiffs, togetherwith thesubjectmatteron which eachcontrolledexpertwitnessis

expected to testify; the conclusionsand opinionsofeachcontrolledexpertwitnessandthe bases

therefore;andthequalificationsof eachcontrolledexpertwitnessandacopyofall reportsof

suchwitnesses. ‘ -

ANSWER: ~Tobe determined •• • ‘

3



6.’ ~ respectto anywitness(es)interviewedby Respondentwho Respondentdoes

not intendto call to testify at hearing,statethenameandaddressofanysuchwitness,state

whethera transcriptofanyinterviewwith saidwitnesswasprepared,or amemorandum

preparedin connectionwith anysuchinterview, andprovideasummaryofthefactsandopinions

relevantto this proceedingwhich weresecuredfrom saidwitness. - -

ANSWER:, To bedetermine~--- DiscoveryContinues -

- 7. , Pursuantto Illinois SupremeCourtRule213(g), identify anyandall opinion

,witnessesthatRespondenthas‘interviewedand/orexpectsto call a~thearing. Specify:

1. The subjectmatteron which theopinionwitnessis expectedto testify as

well astheconclusions,opinionand/orexpectedtestimonyofanysuch’

• witness; ,

- 2. The qualifications,including butnot limited to the opinionwitness’

educationalbackground,practicalexperiencein theareaheor sheis

,expectedto testify in, any articlesandpapershe orshe haswritten, any

- • ‘ andall seminarsand postgraduatetraininghe hasreceived,his -

experience,-if any, asateacheror lecturerandhis orherprofessional

appointmentsandassociations. - ‘ -

3. Theidentify ofeachdocumentexamined,considered,or relieduponby

• • - him or herto form his orheropinions. • - •

4. - All proceedingsin Which eachopinionwitnesshaspreviouslytestifiedas

anopinionwitness. “ ‘ •

• • 5. ‘ Any andall reportsoftheopinionwitness.

• ANSWER: To be determined ‘ - ‘ -

- 8. ‘ ‘ Describe the relationship and business dealings between the Illinois corporation of

AmericanDraperyCleanersandFlameproofers, Inc. andDraw DrapeCleaners,Inc.

ANSWER: DrawDrapeswastheoriginal ownerunderwhichtheoriginal FESOP

was issued;AmericanDraperyCleanersandFlameproofers,Inc. wasformedto do

4



businesswith SearsRoebuck&Co., CarsonPineScott& Co.,MarshallFields. American

Drapery Cleanersand Flameproofers,mc; andDrawDrapesareownedby thesame

partiesandusethesamefacilities.

9. DescribetherelationshipandbusinessdealingsbetweentheRoscoeStreet

Partnership and Draw Drape Cleaners,Inc. -

ANSWER: RoscoeStreet Partnership ownsthe Property whereDraw Drape’s

• • • operates. - • ‘ ‘ -

10. Describetherelationshipbetweentheillinois corporationof AmericanDrapery

CleanersandFlameproofers,Inc., DrawDrapeCleanersInc., the,RoscoeStreetPartnership,

Draw DrapeCleanersInc., andthebankruptcyofLake-ShoreMazda. - ‘

ANSWER: LakeShoreMazdais thebusinessownedby StevenPress& RichardZell.

• • • ,StevenPress,AudreyPressandRichardZelli Own theRoscoeStreetPartnership.

American DraperyCleanersandFlameproofers,Inc. andDraw DrapeCleaners,

- Inc., areownedby StevenPressandRichardZell. AmericanDraperyCleanersis

listed asa creditorofLakeShoreMazda. ‘ ‘

11. ‘ Providethenumber’ofkilogramsofVOM that Resp•ondentemittedto the

- atmosphereper 100 kg dry weightof articlescleaned -

a) FromDryer #1 for eachyearthat Dryer#1 was/isin operation.

ANSWER: • No recordexists. The kilograms ofVOM emittedvarieswith different

typesofdrapes.

b) From Dryer#2 for eachyearthatDryer #2 was/isin operation.

ANSWER: Norecordexists. The kilograms ofVOM emittedvarieswith different

typesof drapes.

5



‘COUNTY OF COOK )

-‘ ‘ ‘ )‘ ‘SS
STATE OF ILLINOIS -‘ )

VERIFICATION

I, RichardZell, beingduly sworn, stateI havereadDRAW DRAPESCLEANERS’ RESPONSE
TO FIRST SET OF INTERROGATORIESandthestatementsin this Responsearetrue and -‘

correctto thebestofmy knowledgeandbelief. -

44/- ~1
‘ RICX~IARDZELL

7
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BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLUITION CONTROL BOARD

PEOPLE OF THE STATEOF ILL)~OIS ) - - ‘ ‘ ~IT

Complainant, ) . No. PCB 03-51 ‘ 5
• • ‘ • • - ) (Enforcement - Air) _________________

t)RAW DRAPE CLEANERS, INC., -‘ - ) -

an Illinois corporat~oxi, • • ) • • ‘ • - -

- )
Respondent. ‘ - ) . - • • • -

RESPONSETO STATE OF ILLINOIS’
• - - SECOND$ET OF INTERROGATOX&IES

RespondentDraw DrapeCleaners,Inc. (“Draw Drapes”), by its attorneys,Weissbergand

Associates, Ltd., respond to Complainant’s Second Set of In.terrogatories on RespondentDraw

t)rape Cleaners, Inc., andstate: • ‘ ‘

• ‘ • • - rNTERROGATORIES - • •

Interrogatory ~o.1: • . •‘ ‘ • • -

Pleaseprovide a detailed list of all dutiesfor thefollowing personswith respectto the ownership

andoperation ofDraw Drape Cleaners,Inc. andAmericanDrapery Cleaners& Flarneproofers,

- Inc. at all timesrelevantto theComplaint in this matter. Such duties includebut arenot limited

• to: theinstallation ofDryer #1 andDryer#21 th~operation ofDryer#1 andDryer#2 andthe

testingofDryer#1 andDryer#2. , ‘

a. , Richard Zell ‘ ‘ ‘

• AdN$WER: RichardZell operatesandmanagesboth companiesand isandwas responsiblefor

day-to day operations

b. Steven Press -

- ANSWER~ • StevenPresshasnot beeninvolved with either company for over 20 years.

In addition,RespondentstatesthatRichardZell and Steven Pressareinvolved in litigation

• against eachother and StevenPressis representedby GregoryStemEsq.53 West Jackson, Suite

1442,Chicago,Illinois 60604,Tele.312/444-9300. -
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c. Audrey Press -‘ •- - - ‘ ‘ ‘ - ‘ - -

• ANSWER: Audrey Presshasneverhadanythingto do with either comjany. • -

• • Interro~toryNo.2: • • - - • • - . ‘

List afl owners/ operators /managers I employeesandlorconsultants for Draw Drape Cleaners

Inc. andAmericant)rapexy Cleaners &Flaxneproofers, Inc.,who had dealingswith or conferred’

• with or coirespondedor metwith governmentregulators (including, but not limited to the

Attorney General’sOffice, Illinois EPAI the City of Chicago,andtheU.S. Environmentai -

• ProtectionAgency) in all mattersrelated to the Complaint including the application fora FE

SOP for Draw Drape Cleaners. • • • - - - • •- • ;-

ANSWER: RichardZell is the only personwho haddealingswith or conferred with or

correspondedor metwith governmentregulators (including, but not limited to theAttorney

General’s Office, Illinois EPAI the City ofChicago,andthe U.S. EnvironmentalProtection

• - Agency)in afl matters related t~the Complaint including theapplication for aFE SOP for Draw

Drape Cleaners. •‘ • • - -

Interrogatory No.3: • • - •

For theowners,operators, managers,employeesandlorconsultants named in InterrogatoryNo.2,

provide a detailedlisting ofthe activities andduties that eachofthosepersonsperformedin their

dealingswith or conferringwith or correspondingwith or meetingswith governmentregulators.

ANSWER: • Richard Zell was andis responsiblefor operating andmanagingthebusiness.

~p~rrogatoryNo.4:

Identify all ofthe corporate officers ofDraw Drape Cleaners, Inc. andAmericanDrapery

Cleaners& Flameproofers, Inc. from 1996 to thepresent,including the officers full legal names,

position(s)andJor title(s)on the corporationsT Board, percent ownership in the corporation, social

securitynumbers,and c~urentor last knownaddresses. • -

ANSWER: • • • • - - - • -

RichardZell: 50%ownership— Draw Drapes

2
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- - 50% ownership - AmericanDrapes

- StevenPress: 50% ownership— Draw Drapes -

•50% ownership — AmericanDrapes

• Iflterro2atorV No.5: - - • -

HasDraw Drape Cleaners,Inc., AmericanDraperyCleaners’& Flameproofers, Inc., Richard

Zell, StevenPress, or Audrey filed for bankruptcy since 1996?11so,provide the Court

•bankruptcy wasfiled, the case,number,andthe amountofliability di~charged.

- ANSW~: No. • • • • • ,

• • • DRAW DRAPECLEANERS,rNC.,
- • • - • an Illinois corporation

• , By: ~
• • • • Oneof their attorneys

Mel Weissberg,Esq.
John H. Redfield, Esq.
Michele Mary Rocawich, Esq.
WeissbergandAssociates,Ltd.

• 401 S. LaSalleSt., Suite403
Chicago,IL 60605
312/663-0004
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

• I, JOELJ. STERNSTEIN, an Assistant Attorney General, do

certify that 1 caused to be mailed this 2’~ day of July, 2004,

the foregoing Plaintiff’s Second Motion for Partial Summary

Judgment by first-class mail in a postage prepaid envelope and

depositing same with the United States PostalService located in

Chicago, Illinois.

- •~ ~

JOEL J. STERNSTEIN




